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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT 
On behalf of the board of directors and the staff of Golf 
Saskatchewan, welcome to the 2020 annual general meeting. 
The past year was successful for our member clubs, 
members, and staff, and we are excited to share the news 
with everyone today.  

Golf Saskatchewan continues to align our strategies with our 
partners at Golf Canada, and we continue to work in 
collaboration with them on many initiatives and programs 
being delivered to our member clubs across the province.  

I would also like to recognize and thank Sask Sport Inc. for 
the contributions it makes, to Golf Saskatchewan and our 
member clubs, through the Membership Assistants Program 
(MAP). We are fortunate to have this partnership, supporting 
Golf Saskatchewan and the other 12,000 sport, culture and 
recreation groups in the province.  Also, Sask Sport has been 
a leader in the Respect in Sport action. This is a goal of Golf 
Canada and has referenced the Sask Sport contributions on 
these matters. 

As the Provincial Championships we host are one of the core 
functions of our association. I would like to thank all the 
players who participate in our championships. We continue 
to try and introduce new ideas based on the comments of our 
competitors so thank you for the feedback. I would also like to thank all our member clubs who partner with us 
allowing Golf Saskatchewan to run exceptional championships. Without our member clubs we would not be able to 
host these events. 

I would like to recognize and thank the volunteers, who are the lifeblood of our association. These individuals work 
tirelessly for Golf Saskatchewan, giving back to the game. Our rules officials - As everyone was aware the Rules of 
Golf had a major change and Golf Saskatchewan was successful in Getting 7 Officials certified at a National Level 
and 15 Officials certified at the Provincial Level. Course raters, on course volunteers, and tournament support 
teams, provide our staff the assistance required to deliver our great services.  

We are always looking at new and innovative ways to strengthen our partnership with the Saskatchewan Turfgrass 
Association, the PGA of Canada/SK and the Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame.  These associations play a key role in 
the success and celebration of golf in Saskatchewan, and we are proud to work with them to grow this great game 
we all love.  

As an association, we are proud to have the terrific office staff. I would like to thank our fulltime staff of Brian Lee, 
Candace Dunham, Steve Ryde and Clark Stork. Along with our interns Tyler Buffalo and Griffin McLeod.  

Finally, the past 2 years have been an enjoyable opportunity to serve the membership as the president of Golf 
Saskatchewan. Thank you to the entire board of directors who nominated me. As this year comes to an end, I hope I 
was able to help lead the organization into the future and look forward to continuing supporting Golf 
Saskatchewan in whatever ways I can. 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

Delbert Betnar  
President, Golf Saskatchewan and Proud Volunteer of Golf Canada & Golf SK 
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MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR / CEO 
I welcome you all to the 2020 annual general meeting of the 
Saskatchewan Golf Association Inc. operating as Golf 
Saskatchewan.  

On any previous year since 2010, my report to the membership 
would have contained updates on what the golf year might  
look like including; the launch of the World Handicap System 
(WHS), handicap certification seminars, opening an active golf 
season on April 15, course visitation schedule, championship 
events, order of merit tour schedules, course rating, 
participation programs like golf in school, Rules of Golf 
workshops, and many other services.  

On March 13, a new reality set in for our office as we had our 
last face to face office day with the unprecedented times due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. And just like that, our world was 
different. While we are optimistic about a golf season in 
Saskatchewan and Canada for 2020, it might look quite 
different from what our successful 2019 season looked like.  

Here are some highlights from 2019: 

 Celebrating Volunteers: thank you to the numerous 
volunteers who give tirelessly of their time to assist Golf Saskatchewan in fulfilling our mandate. 

 Provincial Champions: congratulations to all our provincial championships listed in the championships 
section. A special thank you to all competitors who teed it up this past year and for those who challenged 
themselves at Golf Canada’s national championships.   

 Membership: an increase in gold memberships in 2019 was a positive indicator for our game in Saskatchewan.  
 Rounds Posted: more than 217,000 rounds were posted for handicap purposes by members in Saskatchewan. 
An average of approximately 19 rounds per member.  

 Inclusive Golf Activities: we were a part of more inclusive golf activities in 2019 including the Special Olympics 
chapter golf event, Para-Golf activities and blind golf.  

 Coaching & Instruction: we continue to invest in the development of our coaching initiatives with Steve Ryde, 
Jason Schneider, or other PGA of Saskatchewan coaches across the province. Whether it is a young player or a 
veteran player wanting to improve, we assist in fostering a relationship with all experts, to make the game more 
enjoyable for everyone.  

Golf Saskatchewan continues to focus on the four main areas of our Strategic Plan and the foundational 
measurements; 1. Ensuring Excellence, 2. Growing Participation, 3. Fostering Interaction and 4. Expanding 
Capacity. Looking forward using our Strategic Plan, I see continuing the collaborative partnerships with Golf 
Canada, other provincial golf associations and the National Allied Golf Association members (NAGA) to propel the 
game of golf forward. The goal of all golf associations is to work together to increase participation, increasing 
member values and attracting new golfers to the sport. We will continue to work on measures for diversity & 
inclusion and the Respect in Sport programming. 

The successes in 2019 can be attributed to the many dedicated volunteers, and our professional staff, who keep our 
organization running effectively. The volunteers and staff serve in areas including championships, course rating, 
financial management, governance, handicapping, member services, Rules of Golf, sport development and the 
Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame. A few thank you notes, to pass along:   

 to the golfing community for supporting us and for hosting provincial, regional, national championships,  
 to the competitors who challenge themselves annually at our championships, 
 to our partners and sponsors listed in the report, the contributions to the amateur game assists us in 

delivering quality programming, services, and events, 
 to Tourism Saskatchewan and other tourism organizations attracting visitor to our great province,   
 to our volunteers who graciously give their time to advance our sport,  
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 our President, Delbert Betnar for his leadership in 2018 to 2020, and to our Board of Directors for all their 
past, present and future efforts,  

 to Golf Canada (Laurence Applebaum – CEO, Charlie Beaulieu President) in playing a large part in growing 
golf in Saskatchewan,  

 to the PGA of Saskatchewan members who strive to make us better for us all and enjoy the game more,   
 my staff from 2019:    

o Candace Dunham, Mgr. Member Services  
o Steve Ryde, Mgr. Sport & Championships 
o Clark Stork, Director of Communications  
o Summer Interns, Tyler Buffalo & Griffin McLeod 

I am proud of what Golf Saskatchewan achieved across our many operational and strategic areas in 2019 and we 
look forward to hopefully seeing you all on the links in 2020 when it is safe to proceed with the game.  

Until then, please be safe and kind to one another.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Brian Lee, Executive Director / CEO 
Proud Member of Golf Canada & Golf SK

Strategic Plan Overview: Golf House Saskatchewan 
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2019/20 BOARD & STAFF DIRECTORY 

 
Back Row (l-r): Danny Klughart, Kevin Duchscherer, Larry Wagman, Todd Bergstresser 
Front Row (l-r): Diana Kerr, Jasmine Cameron, Don Kunkel (VP), Delbert Betnar (President), Ben Findlay 

Board of Directors 
Position Name Golf Course Affiliation City/Town 
President Delbert Betnar Joanne Goulet GC Regina 
Vice President Don Kunkel Deer Park MGC Yorkton 
Treasurer Todd Bergstresser Public Player Saskatoon 
Past President  Vacant ------------------ ----------------- 
Director Kevin Duchscherer Evergreen GC Nipawin 
Director Ben Findlay Wascana CC Regina 

Director Jasmine Cameron Hillcrest GC Moose Jaw 

Director Larry Wagman Royal Regina GC Regina 

Director Danny Klughart Cooke Municipal GC Prince Albert 

Director Diana Kerr Tor Hill GC Regina 

Staff 
Executive Director/CEO Brian Lee blee@golfsk.org 306-975-0841 
Mgr. Member Services Candace Dunham cdunham@golfsk.org 306-975-0850 
Mgr. Sport Development & Championships  Steve Ryde sryde@golfsk.org 306-975-0834 
Director of Communications Clark Stork cstork@golfsk.org 306-521-2559 

Golf Canada: Governors, Committee Members, and Staff 
Laura Small, Riverside CC, Saskatoon  
Governors Council, Governance, Investment  

Richard Smith, Katepwa Beach GC, Fort Qu’Appelle  
Governors Council, Past Chair Course Rating 

Brian Doherty, Membership Services 
bdoherty@golfcanada.ca 

Judy Sefton, Melfort GCC, Melfort  
Handicap & Course Rating Committee 

Delbert Betnar, Joanne Goulet GC, Regina 
Provincial Council Representative   

Brian Lee, Public Player, Saskatoon 
Rules Committee 

Laurence Applebaum, CEO 
lapplebaum@golfcanada.ca 

Charlie Beaulieu, President of Golf Canada (2019 - ) 
cbeaulieu@golfcanada.ca 

Blair Armitage, Western Membership Rep.  
barmitage@golfcanada.ca 

 

  

mailto:bdoherty@golfcanada.ca
mailto:lapplebaum@golfcanada.ca
mailto:cbeaulieu@golfcanada.ca
mailto:barmitage@golfcanada.ca
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COMMITTEES OF GOLF SASKATCHEWAN 

 
 

Standing Committees 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE & 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION 
Delbert Betnar, Chair 
Todd Bergstresser 
Don Kunkel 
Brian Lee* 
 
FINANCE 
Todd Bergstresser, Chair 
Delbert Betnar 
Don Kunkel 
Danny Klughart  
Brian Lee* 
Lyndsay Lee* 
 
NOMINATING 
Delbert Betnar, Chair 
Ben Findlay 
Todd Bergstresser 

Operating Committees  
NOTE: All Operating Committees report to and/or include the 
Executive Director/CEO 
 
COURSE RATING 
Richard Smith – Chair 
Ken Bradley  
Bob Krismer          
Byron Harvie        
Wayne Bucknell     
Terry Meier 
Judy Sefton     
 
HANDICAPPING 
Richard Smith 
Judy Sefton 
 
MEMBER SERVICES 
Candace Dunham* - Chair 
Golf Saskatchewan Staff 
Golf Canada Staff  

RULES OF GOLF (Advisory Panel/Committee) 
Delbert Betnar 
Kevin Duchscherer 
Byron Harvie 
Terry Gaube 
Wayne Joyce 
Jim Walker 
Laurie Walker 
 
SPONSORSHIP & FUNDRAISING 
Don Kunkel 
Ben Findlay 
Delbert Betnar 
Jasmine Cameron  
*Staff 
 
SPORT & CHAMPIONSHIPS 
Manager of Sport & Championships* 
Jason Schneider – PGA of SK Liaison 
Kevin Duchscherer  
Ben Findlay 
 
Other members of the advisory panel: 
Jeff Chambers – President of PGA of SK & MJT  
Darryl Czuy 
Shaun Dunphy 
Shawn McNall 
David Stewart    
Clinton Schmaltz – PGA of SK  
Tanner White 
 
SASKATCHEWAN GOLF HALL OF FAME 
Byron Harvie, Chair 
Joe Bloski, STA 
Rob Lee – PGA of SK 
Brian Lee – Secretary 
Pat Buglass 
Pat Lawson (Deceased 2019)  
Murray Eddy 
Doug Mader 
Terry Meier 
Keith Rever 
Judy Sefton 
Joe Trudelle 
 
*Lori Harvie, Researcher for the SGHF 
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MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Member Facilities 

9 Hole Facilities (54) 

Antler Acres Golf Club Hidden Hills of Shellbrook GC Regina Beach Golf Club 

Assiniboia Regional Park GC Hidden Valley Golf & RV Resort Robertdale Golf & Country Club 

Bengough Regional Park GC Indian Head Golf & Country Club Rock Creek Golf & Country Club 

Birch Hills Golf Club Katepwa Beach Golf Club Rolling Pines G&C Resort 

Canwood Pines Golf Club Kelvington Golf Club Rosetown Golf & Country Club 

Carlton Trail Regional Park GC Kindersley Regional Park GC Sandy Beach Regional Park GC 

Carlyle Town & Country GC Lashburn Town & Country GC Sherwood Forest Country Club 

Carnduff Golf Club Little Loon Regional Park GC Silver Lake Regional Park GC 

Chitek Lake Golf Course Loon Lake Golf & Country Club St. Brieux Regional Park GC 

Coronach Golf Club Maple Creek Golf Club The Creek Golf Course 

Cypress Hills Golf Resort McNab Regional Park Golf Club Thomson Lake Regional Park GC 

Davidson Golf & Country Club Mervin & District Golf Club Tisdale Riverside Golf Club 

Eagle Point Resort Moose Creek Golf Club Unity Golf Club 

Echo Ridge Golf Course Outlook Riverview Golf Club Valleyview Delisle GCC 

Eddy Golf Club Pasquia Golf Club Wakaw Lake Golf Club 

Eston Riverside Golf Club Pipestone Hills Golf Club Whitewood Golf & Country Club 

Fairview Fairways Golf Club Ponteix Golf Club Wynyard Golf Club 

Foam Lake Golf & Country Club Redvers & District GCC  

Green Acres Golf & Country Club   

12 Hole Facilities (2) 
    Greenbryre Golf & Country Club 
York Lake Golf & Country Club 

18 Hole Facilities (43) 
Candle Lake Golf Resort Harbor Golf Club & Resort Northern Meadows Golf Club 

Chinook Golf Course Hillcrest Golf Club Riverside Country Club 

Cooke Municipal Golf Course Humboldt Golf Club Royal Regina Golf Club 

Dakota Dunes Golf Links Joanne Goulet Golf Course Sask Landing Golf Resort 

Deer Park Municipal GC Kachur's Golf Club Saskatoon Golf & Country Club 

Deer Ridge Golf Club Lloydminster Golf & Curling Centre Silverwood Golf Course 

Deer Valley Golf Club Long Creek Golf & Country Club Spiritwood Golf Club 

Elmwood Golf & Country Club Lynbrook Golf & Country Club The Legends Golf Club 

Emma Lake Golf Course Mainprize Regional Park GC  TS&M Woodlawn Golf Club 

Evergreen Golf Club Meadow Lake Golf Club Valley Regional Park Golf Club 

Flowing Springs Golf Greens Melfort Golf & Country Club Wascana Country Club 

Golf Kenosee Melville Golf & Country Club Waskesiu Golf Course 

Good Spirit Golf Resort Memorial Lake Regional Park GGC Weyburn Golf Club 

Greenhills Golf Resort Murray Municipal Golf Course Wildwood Golf Course 

 North Battleford GCC  

27 Hole Facilities (5)  
Elk Ridge Resort Tor Hill Golf Course 

Holiday Park Golf Course Willows Golf & Country Club 

Moon Lake Golf & Country Club 
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MEMBER & MEMBERSHIP NUMBERS 

Member Clubs  
From 2016-2019: 

Member Clubs 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Players Clubs 19 19 19 18 

9 Hole Sand 3 3 3 3 

9 Hole Grass 55 56 52 54 

12 Hole Grass 1 1 1 2 

18 Hole Grass 42 41 44 43 

27 Hole Grass 4 5 5 5 

36 Hole Grass 1 0 0 0 

Total 125 125 124 125 

Individual members including public players 
Membership Category 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Adult Male 7997 8080 7778 7615 7246 7591 7427 

Adult Female 3413 3203 3031 2883 2677 2545 2666 

Junior Male 1147 1123 1060 873 969 705 682 

Junior Female 152 175 160 122 178 98 100 

Gold Members     400        

Total 12709 12581 12429 11493 11,070 10939 10883 

Public Player Category 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Adult Male 188 221 189 243 297 337 450 

Adult Female 41 46 36 62 62 47 57 

Junior Male 22 16 4 2 12 7 11 

Junior Female 5 3 1 0 3 3 4 

Total 256 286 230 307 374 394 522 

OVERALL TOTAL 12,965 12,867 12,659 11,800 11,444 11,333 11405 

Golf Course Anniversaries / Milestones 
2019 Other 

Lashburn Golf Club – 25th Anniversary Pipestone Hills GC, grand opening of their new clubhouse 

Mainprize Golf Club – 25th Anniversary Each year, our team assists with notifying golf enthusiast about golf 
club milestones and special occasions.  
If the celebration is a major milestone the club receives a plaque for 
grand opening or 25th, 50th, 75th anniversary or a scroll to hour 100th 
and more. These are shared with Golf Canada.  

Humboldt Golf Club – 75th Anniversary 

Elmwood Golf & Country Club – 100th Anniversary 

Weyburn Golf Club – 100th Anniversary 

Golf Course Visitation Program  
Golf course visitations have always been a great way to build and maintain relationships with our member clubs. In 
2019, we had 60 specific course visitations to finish up our goal of visiting all member clubs in two years. In 2018, 
we visited 63 member clubs and 35 in 2017. 

In 2020, prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, we were focused on continuing golf course visitations, with a 
combination of visiting member and non-member clubs. When it is safe to continue with club visitations this 
season, we will contact clubs on our visitation schedule 2 weeks prior to the visit to ensure we are able to meet 
with the appropriate contacts for the course.  
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Membership Assistance Program (MAP Grants) 
The purpose of the Membership Assistance Program (MAP) grant is to 
provide financial assistance to Golf Saskatchewan registered affiliated 
clubs so they may operate programs encouraging and promoting 
community and club level sport development in their local area. 
Development of these programs and services will increase membership in 
Golf Saskatchewan and the local member organizations. MAP is funded by 
the Saskatchewan Lotteries Trust Fund for Sport, Culture & Recreation 
and is derived from the sale of lottery tickets in Saskatchewan. 

In 2019, Golf Saskatchewan distributed $98,200 in MAP Grants to 91 
member clubs. A complete break-down of the clubs and the MAP funding 
from 2019 can be found in the Audited Financial Statements (Schedule 7) 
of the audited financial statements.   

In 2020, $100,000 will be distributed to Member Clubs. Since we began 
tracking the distributed MAP GRANTS funds in 2001, approximately $1.53 
million has been allotted to member clubs. Thank you for the continued support in growing member participation 
in golf and remember to purchase your lottery tickets.       

Hole-in-One Club 
Golf Saskatchewan has tracked holes-in-one by members in the Hole-in-One Club since 2004.  Any member scoring 
a hole-in-one receives a pin and certificate from Golf Saskatchewan upon submission of their information and they 
are also recognized in our ON PAR E-Newsletter.   

YEAR 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL 

Members 49 56 80* 119* 127* 46 50 55 582 

Digital Interactive and Print Media 
Golf Saskatchewan communicates with our members, member clubs, industry partners and stakeholders through 
several communication methods including but not limited to: 

DIGITAL INTERACTIVE DIGITAL INTERACTIVE PRINT & FACE TO FACE 
Web: www.golfsaskatchewan.org  Direct Membership messages Annual Report (Yearbook) 
ON PAR E-Newsletter (five issues)  Golf Canada joint messages Media Day Guide / History 
Rule of the Week (April – October) BlueGolf Tournament System Spring Mail-out (all member clubs) 
Twitter @GolfSK (3108 followers) Golf Canada Score Centre Posters / Pamphlets / Handouts 
Facebook /GolfSK (1531 followers) Golf Canada Club Kiosk  Tradeshows / Industry Meetings 
Instagram /GolfSaskatchewan (781 followers) www.golfcanada.ca  MAP Grant Programming 
Golf SK YouTube Channel Member Benefits  Course Visitations / Seminars  
Golf SK Wikipedia    

Golf Canada - Incident Protection Program  

In 2019, 20 Golf Saskatchewan members submit claims under the Incident Protection Program (IPP) valued at 
$11,262 in damages, theft or loss. This was slightly behind the 17 incidents in 2018 resulting in $11,310 claims 
being reimbursed. The items included a combination of equipment damage, loss or theft, broken glass, golf cart 
damage or the program paying the deductible on a member’s home insurance for items above the valued threshold.  

In 2020, we will continue to update our membership about the incident protection program.  

  

http://www.golfsaskatchewan.org/
http://golfsaskatchewan.org/more/newsnewsletter/
http://golfsaskatchewan.org/more/newsnewsletter/
https://twitter.com/GolfSK
https://www.facebook.com/GolfSaskatchewan/
https://www.instagram.com/golfsaskatchewan/?hl=en
http://www.golfcanada.ca/
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Golf_Saskatchewan


  11 MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

VOLUNTEERS  
“Volunteers Don’t Just Do The Work – They Make It Work” 
The Volunteer Appreciation Golf Day was held on September 8th at the Deer Valley Golf Resort at Lumsden. 21 
individuals attended the event which consisted of a Net Stableford competition. Thank you to all our volunteers for 
their efforts in 2019. Our events, programs and core service offerings could not have run as smoothly without your 
help. We hope to see you all return in 2020. 

2019 Volunteers & Years of Service (YOS)  
Name YOS Name YOS Name YOS 
Ken Barteski  7 Syl Gaudet 11 Dave Moore 5 
Todd Bergstresser 8 Byron Harvie 15 Ken Ottenbreit 1 
Wendy Besplug 17 Lori Harvie 10 Rosie Ottenbreit 1 
Jim Bethune 7 Ross Harwood 9 Bill Reed 7 
Delbert Betnar 16 Dale Johnson 11 Judy Sefton 11 
Gary Borton 10 Wayne Joyce 27 Laura Small 11 
Ken Bradley 18 Dianna Kerr 6 Richard Smith 17 
Bill Briscoe 19 David Kirstuik 6 John Solomon 10 
Marilyn Briscoe 4 Larry Klopoushak 7 Brian Topp 1 
Wayne Bucknell 18 Linda Kosokowsky 4 Gordon Trischuk 8 
Pat Buglass  28 Bob Krismer 17 Joe Trudelle 15 
Maureen Chambers 17 Don Kunkel 7 Eileen Wagar 15 
Kevin Duchscherer 6 Melodie Lawrek 24 Jim Walker 11 
Bruce Forcey 3 Brad Mitchell 2 Laurie Walker 6 
Terry Gaube 15 Terry Meier 35 Bill Wood 8 

*Notes: (If we missed anyone, we apologize.) | YOS = active service years  

Long Term & Exemplary Volunteer Service & Distinguished Service 
 

 

 
Byron Harvie, the 2019 Long Term & Exemplary Volunteer 
Service Award (Photo Bryon Harvie receives award from Brian Lee)  

 
At the 2019 Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame Induction Dinner 
at the Riverside Country Club, there was an additional award 
presented.  
 
Golf Saskatchewan formally recognized one of our long-term 
volunteers for his dedication to the game of golf. Harvie, of 
Saskatoon was recognized for 15 years of service, focusing 
mainly in the areas of the Rules of Golf, course rating, chair of 
the Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame and as a valued member of 
the board of directors serving as president and past president. 

 

Richard Smith was nominated by Golf Saskatchewan for 
consideration of a distinguished service award with Golf 
Canada.  

At the 2020 Golf Canada annual general meeting in Toronto, 
this past February, Smith accepted this prestigious award.  

This award was on top of his Sask Sport Inc. Volunteer of the 
Year in 2018.  

(Photograph l-r: Delbert Betnar, Richard Smith, Don Kunkel) 
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WOMEN’S PROGRAMMING & EVENTS 

 

Ada Mackenzie Event  
The Ada Mackenzie event is held annually for women’s sections across Saskatchewan to be played between June 1 -
11.  It is a net score event celebrating the life and contributions of Ada Mackenzie to women’s golf. The cost is $2 
per player with proceed going towards junior golf development.  A total of $425.10 was raised in 2019. 
Congratulations to the 2019 winners and thank you to the participating clubs:  

• 9 Hole (tie) with a NET 31 
Peggy Altwasser, Echo Ridge Ladies GC: NET 31 
Betsy McNulty, Wildwood Ladies GC: NET 31 
 

• 18 Hole   
Connie Dewald, Tor Hill Ladies GC: NET 58 

• Echo Ridge Ladies GC 
• Katepwa Beach Ladies GC 
• Tor Hill Ladies GC 
• Wildwood Ladies GC 
• Murray Women’s GC 

Canada Day Event 
The Canada Day Tournament is an 18- or nine-hole round stroke play, net score event.  There are a possible 12 
competitions overall (six north + six south) with three handicap divisions for both the 18- and nine-hole section 
players.  (Handicap divisions are 1-20, 21-32 and 33-40.) The event is scheduled to be played on Ladies Club Day, if 
possible, otherwise may be played any day between June 23 and July 3.  The cost of the competition is $2 per player 
with proceed going towards junior golf development.  A total of $396 was raised for junior women's golf 
development.  Congratulations to the winners:  

North 18-hole competition winners: 
• HDCP 1-20:  

Patti Kikcio, Wildwood Ladies GC: NET 79  
• HDCP 21-32:  

Linda Kozokowsky, Wildwood Ladies GC: NET 70 
• HDCP 33-40:  

Eileen Ireland, Wildwood Ladies GC: NET 72 

South 18-hole competition winners:  
• HDCP: 1-20:  

Glenda Berard, Murray Women’s GC: NET 70 
• HDCP: 21-32:  

Collette Robinson, Tor Hill Ladies GC: NET 67 
• HDCP: 33-40:  

Carol Fahlman, Murray Women’s GC: NET 70 
 

Northern nine-hole competition winners: 
• HDCP: 1-20: 

No competitors  
• HDCP: 21-32:  

Elaine Donovel, Wildwood Ladies GC: NET 33 
• HDCP: 33-40:  

Lyn Carunder, Wildwood Ladies GC = NET 32 

Southern nine-hole competition winners: 
• HDCP: 1-20:  

Wendy Stillborn, Echo Ridge Ladies GC: NET 35 
• HDCP: 21-32: 

 Jane Johnson. Katepwa Beach Ladies GC: NET 32 
• HDCP: 33-40:  

Margaret Hull, Katepwa Beach Ladies GC: NET 37 
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Golf Fore the Cure 

Since its inception in 2004, Golf Fore the Cure, is aimed to grow women’s participation in the game of golf by 
introducing them to the game through fun, non-intimidating activities.  Through a unique partnership structure 
with the Canadian Cancer Society the 
program has women across the country 
participate in golf activities raising 
money in the fight against breast cancer.  
Even if you are not a golfer there is no 
better chance for you to learn the game 
and have fun doing it.  

For the third year in a row, a group from 
Elk Ridge Resort was invited to the 
national GFTC event. Their one-day 
tournament raised over $20,000, the 
second highest in Canada. Over the years 
of the event at Elk Ridge, the attendees 
and committee have raised over 
$100,000. All the funds raised stay in 
Saskatchewan and aid local patients. 

Nationally over $343,000 was raised this 
year through 175 local GFTC events. Since 2004, $6.8 million has been raised.  Thank you to everyone who 
organized, participated, and donated to the local clubs and organizers.  We thank those who participated and hope 
you hold events again in 2020 and beyond.   

  

2018 Events 2019 Events 
14 = $49,000 was raised in SK 

$450,000 was raised in Canada 
11 = $27,341 was raised in SK 

$343,650 was raised in Canada 

TOP 20 FUNDRAISING SITES IN 2019 

# Golf Club Province $’s Raised 

1 Golf New Brunswick Provincial Event NB $50,123.32  

2 Mississauga Golf & CC ON $32,704.29  

3 Elk Ridge Resort SK $20,028.97  

4 Sussex Golf & Curling Club NB $19,790.00  

5 North Bay Golf ON $11,856.00  

6 Club de Golf St Jean Ltee QC $10,856.31  

7 Rosetown Golf & Country Club SK $10,258.05  

8 Blue Heron Golf Club ON $9,925.00  

9 Haunted Lakes Golf Club AB $8,473.00  

10 Marlwood Golf and Country Club ON $8,091.34  

11 Fernie Golf Club BC $7,911.80  

12 Highland Pacific Golf BC $7,641.87  

13 Red Tail Landing Golf Club AB $7,575.00  

14 Candle Lake Golf Resort SK $6,993.00  
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FINANCE COMMITTEE 
I am pleased to present the financial report for 2019 for the 
year ending Dec 31st, 2019. The firm of VIRTUS GROUP has 
completed the annual audit of the financial statements of 
Golf Saskatchewan. In VIRTUS Group’s opinion, 
management maintains an appropriate system of internal 
accounting controls ensure the transactions are accurately 
recorded on a timely basis, are properly approved and 
result in reliable financial statements. Management and the 
Board of Directors acknowledge the financial statements 
are their responsibility.   

The Finance Committee, composed of members of the 
Board of Directors, meets with the management of Golf 
Saskatchewan to ensure accuracy of the association’s financial reports. The Board of Directors has voted to 
approve the financial statements as presented in the Appendix I of the annual report. Financial highlights:  

i. Revenues increased just over 6% or $53,348 from the previous year. 
o The revenue increases were in the membership area, annual grants and championship revenues 

compared to the previous year. 
ii. Expenses were comparable to the previous year with a small increase of less than 1% or $1,000 from the 

previous year.  
o Increase in the areas of Administration, Participation & Interaction, and the Excellence.    

The Expenses are detailed below:  

iii. Administration (Schedule 3) increase approximately 5% or $19,000. 
o Amortization of assets and investment in personnel providing more services. 

iv. Capacity and Interaction (Schedule 4) decreased approximately 47% or $35,000.  
o The decrease was largely captured in not having a CP Women’s Open 50/50 winner. 

v. Participation and Interaction (Schedule 5) decreased approximately 7% or $7,700. 
o 2019 we had some savings in our Officials development.   

vi. Excellence (Schedule 6) increase approximately 28% or $17,000.   
o Increase in spending on national championships and athlete assistance compared to 2018. We also had a 

couple of multi-sport game events in 2019 which we did not have in 2018.  

The overall result is a $2,401 deficiency of revenues over expenses and therefore a decrease in the reserves 
(unrestricted net assets). 

NOTES TO BUDGETING:  

1. For the budgeting process, the board and management do not include any grant revenues unless they have 
officially been announced and received by the office. 

2. For the 2019 Fiscal Year, the Board of Directors approved a strategic deficit budget of $32,100 (with 
forecasted expenses totaling $960,450 compared to revenues of $928,350).  

a. Actual Revenues = $927,215 and Actual Expenses = $929,616. 
3. Reminder to membership: an approved deficit budget does not impact Golf Saskatchewan’s overall financial 

position due to our strong reserve funds, and limited interest was accounted in our general operating funds. 
One of our strategic measures is a zero budget in less than three years.   

Thank you to the Golf Saskatchewan staff, Board of Directors and the Finance Committee for their contributions 
during the past year. 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

Todd Bergstresser 
Chair of Finance Committee  
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SPONSORSHIP / FUNDRAISING COMMITTEE 
In 2020, we are pleased to announce, we will continue our partnerships/sponsorships with TaylorMade Canada 
and Adidas Golf Canada. Thank you to all our sponsors and partners for their tremendous support in 2019. We 
look forward to working with you all for years to come.  
 

    

   
 

    

    

    

    
 

1. Saskatchewan Lotteries:  Annual funding through Sask Sport Inc. and Sask Lotteries Trust Fund   
2. Golf Canada and Golf Canada Foundation: National partner(s) 
3. TaylorMade Canada:  Official sponsor of SK players at Nationals (bags, hats and golf ball) 
4. Adidas Golf Canada: supporter of HP Program, players at Nationals and volunteers 
5. Airline Hotels: proud hotel sponsor at its 3 properties in Saskatoon and 1 in Regina 
6. SaskTel: presenting sponsor of Future Links Mobile Program 
7. Concorde Group Corp: Official wine sponsor of the Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame (SGHF)  
8. Melody Motors Ltd.: Tournament Vehicle Sponsor 
9. Sport Medicine & Science Council of SK: supporter of High-Performance Training initiatives    
10. Golf Tec Saskatoon & The Golf Dome: Off-Season Training facilities in Saskatoon 
11. 1621 and the First Tee: Off-Season training facilities in Regina 
12. IBAS: supporter of Junior Golf   
13. Easy Golf Tour: Tournament & League Management Software  
14. Minuteman Press Saskatoon: Official Printing Supplier for Golf SK and the SK Golf Hall of Fame 
15. The Rotary Club of Saskatoon: Master Golf Pool organizer and supporter of Junior Golf 
16. Regina Men’s Publinx: supporter of JR Golf with donations over $5,500 during the past 12 years  
17. Saskatchewan Sports Hall of Fame & Museum: partner of Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame 

Other partnerships: 
1. PGA of Saskatchewan: supporter with Growing the Game & game improvement  
2. Tourism Saskatchewan: supporter of all things golf and tourism related to Saskatchewan 
3. Tourism Regina/Saskatoon and other tourism organizations 

 

If you or your business would like to become a partner with Golf Saskatchewan, please contact our office.   

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwikrpHpwvbLAhVI7mMKHeREBGIQjRwIBw&url=http://www.firstinsurancefunding.ca/events/insurance-brokers-association-saskatchewan-convention&bvm=bv.118443451,d.cGc&psig=AFQjCNE9SVclH6dOOYNzH0dErdFn6I0GbA&ust=1459912154389673


 COURSE RATING COMMITTEE 16 

 

COURSE RATING COMMITTEE 

Course Rating Workshops 
The 2019 course rating season started with the annual 
workshop held May 15-17 in Saskatoon at the JVR Building and 
at the Willows GC. 15 volunteers attended the seminar. The 
educational seminar includes Course Raters with a wide range 
of knowledge from beginners to seasoned raters.  

2019 Member Club Course Ratings 
Course ratings were conducted at the following 18 member 
courses by teams made up from the 24 active course rating 
volunteers. 

# Holes Course Name Location 
1 9 Assiniboia Regional Park GC Assiniboia  
2 18 Deer Valley GC  Deer Valley  
3 9 Eagle Point Resort LaRonge 
4 9 Echo Ridge GC Fort Qu’Appelle 
5 18 Flowing Springs Golf Greens Regina 
6 9 Green Acres GC Balgonie 
7 12 Greenbryre GCC Saskatoon 
8 18  Holiday Park GC Saskatoon 
9 9 Katepwa Beach GC Fort Qu’Appelle 

10 18 Memorial Lake GCC Shell Lake  
11 9 Moose Creek GC Oxbow 
12 18 Saskatoon GCC Saskatoon 
13 18  Silverwood GC Saskatoon 
14 18 Willows GCC Saskatoon  
15 9 Tor Hill GC (EAST) Regina 
16 9 Unity GC Unity 
17 3 York Lake GCC Yorkton 
18 2 Deer Park MGC Yorkton 

Course Rating Workshop and Member Club Course Ratings 
The Provincial Course Rating workshop was scheduled for May 12-13 in Saskatoon, including a physical course 
rating of the Legends Golf Course on May 14. With the COVID-19 pandemic, all our in-person seminars are 
cancelled until further notice.    

Interested in Volunteering as a Course Rater? 
Any prospective volunteers should note most course ratings are conducted on weekdays in May and June. There 
may also be course ratings scheduled on weekdays in late August or September. The schedule of courses to be 
rated in 2020 is approximately 17 courses, however many of these may be moved to late fall of 2020 or into 2021 
depending on the COVID-19 pandemic and heath regulations.   

USGA Course Rating System Changes 
In 2020 there are significant changes to the Course Rating System and Guide with the implementation of the 2020 
World Handicap System changes. These changes will be discussed at the 2020 Golf Saskatchewan Course Rating 
Workshop which may be held via an online webinar platform. Please stay tuned for updates regarding our 
seminars.  

Respectfully submitted,  

 

Richard Smith  
Chair of Course Rating Committee  
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HANDICAP COMMITTEE 

Purpose of the Golf Canada Handicap System 

The purpose of the World Handicap System (WHS) is to make the game of golf more enjoyable for golfers by 
providing a consistent means of measuring one’s performance and progress and to enable golfers of differing 
abilities to compete, or play a casual round, with anyone else on a fair and equal basis. 

Through the WHS, each golfer establishes a “Handicap Index” which is the measure of a player’s demonstrated 
ability on a course of standard playing difficulty. 

The Handicap Index is calculated using the lowest eight of the player’s most recent 20 
Score Differentials and updated with each new round played. The Handicap Index 
travels worldwide with the golfer from course to course (and tee to tee) and is used to 
calculate a “Course Handicap”. The Course Handicap is the number of strokes a golfer 
receives from the specific set of tees at the course. The more difficult the golf course, 
the more strokes the golfer receives and vice versa. 

The relative difficulty of a golf course is determined jointly by Golf Canada and the 
provincial golf association using the WHS Course Rating System as administered by 
Golf Canada. Specially trained Course Rating Teams evaluate the difficulty of a golf 
course based on such variables as length and several obstacle factors (e.g. topography, 
bunkers, lateral & crossing obstacles, severity of rough, etc.). 

Only Golf Canada member golf clubs are permitted to use the World Handicap System and Course Rating System 
(as administered by Golf Canada) including related trademarks and service marks.  Member golf clubs must do so 
in a manner that preserves the integrity and reliability of these systems. All rights 
to use these systems and related trademarks and service marks terminate should 
the golf club cease to be a member in good standing with Golf Canada. 

Golf Canada Score Centre  
Post your golf scores, look up a golfers’ handicap factor(s), find golf courses in 
Canada, compute your course handicap and more.  If you haven’t downloaded the 
app for your iPhone or Android device, do so in 2020.  You could get rewarded 
just for posting a score. Let’s increase the posted rounds in 2019. 

Active Season and Posting of Scores 
The handicap season for posting scores at Saskatchewan golf courses is April 15 to Oct. 31. All games played 
outside the active handicap season in Saskatchewan should not be posted for your handicap. 

Handicap Seminars and Licensing Agreements  
There are three ways a club or individual can become certified under the handicap system: 

1. attend a seminar in person,  
2. attend a webinar, or 
3. register and take the online handicap seminar via the Golf Canada website. 

Thank you to the all the individuals at member clubs who sit on your golf club’s Handicap committee. Please keep 
encouraging your members to post their scores in a timely manner and please sign and return the 2020 Handicap 
Licensing Agreements as per the World Handicap System requirements.     

Year Rounds Posted 

2019 217,079 

2018 209,875 

2017 220,261 

2016 213,008 

2015 205,008 
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RULES OF GOLF COMMITTEE 

Member Club Rules Clinics  
Thirteen member clubs hosted a member club rules clinic in 2019. These sessions 
conducted at golf courses for the benefit of members and are intended to familiarize 
golfers with the most frequently encountered rules situations and proper 
procedures. If you have a "What if question ..." or "What happens when ..." a member 
club Rules of Golf clinic is for you.  In 2020, we have put our member club rules 
clinics on hold until further notice with the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Golf Rule of the Week  
Since 2009, Golf Saskatchewan has shared a Rule of the Week during most of the 
active season.  The Rule of the Week has grown over these past 12 years and is now 
circulated to more than 3,000 readers. The Rule of the Week will continue in 2020 
starting in April. Remember, the Rules matter!              

Rules Education: Level 1, Starting your Rules Education  
If you are interested in the starting your Rules of Golf education and progressing through the Golf Canada Rules 
Educational Pathway, please visit http://golfsaskatchewan.org/volunteers/#rules-education select Rules 
Academy.  You don’t have to be an expert on the rules, to be interested.    

Rules Education: Level 2, Provincial Rules of Golf Seminar 

 

May 3-5, 2019, Golf Saskatchewan held our Provincial Rules of Golf seminar at the JVR Building in Saskatoon. A 
total of 15 people attended the sessions (13 participants and 2 instructors). On the Sunday, a provincial and 
national examination was offered for the 2019 rules code.  For 2020, the Level 2 seminar will be postponed due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Rules Education: Level 3, National Rules of Golf  
Golf Canada held a prairie Level 3 
workshops at the St. Charles Country Club 
in Winnipeg, Manitoba in April of 2019.  

Golf Saskatchewan had four attendees and 
one instructor at the session. All people 
who attended the session successfully 
challenged the national certification exam.  

For more information on the Rules of Golf 
please visit 
http://golfsaskatchewan.org/volunteers/#rules-of-golf.  For 2020 all seminars are on hold due to COVID-19.  

http://golfsaskatchewan.org/volunteers/#rules-education
http://golfsaskatchewan.org/volunteers/#rules-of-golf
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SASKATCHEWAN GOLF HALL OF FAME (SGHF) 
The 2019 Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame induction banquet was held at the Riverside Country Club on Saturday, 
Sept. 21, with over 70 people in attendance.    

 

Randy Gilewich (left), Tyler Wright (second left), and Gary Brandon were inducted into the Saskatchewan Golf 
Hall of Fame in 2019. Brandon was inducted posthumously, pictured is his family. His wife Bonnie was joined by 
son Skye and daughter Bobbi. The SGHF now has 53 individuals and four teams enshrined. 

The inductees in the Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame include:  
 

1. Gayle Borthwick (Player) (2010) 
2. Brian Bamford (Player) (2015)  
3. Lori Boyle (Player) (2017) 
4. Gary Brandon (DS) (2019) 
5. Dean Brown (Player) (2018) 
6. Don Campbell (DS) (2012)  
7. Colin Coben (Player) (2012)  
8. Wenda Coley (DS) (2012)  
9. Hubert Cooke (DS) (2010)   
10. Peter Cushner (Player/DS) (2017) 
11. Barbara Danaher (Player) (2010)  
12. Ron Dosdall (Player) (2013)  
13. Margaret Elliott (Player) (2010)  
14. Pat Fletcher (Player) (2010)  
15. Frank Fowler (Player) (2010)  
16. John Gaudet (DS) (2015)  
17. Randy Gilewich (Player) (2019) 
18. Joanne Goulet (Player) (2010)   
19. Con Hammer (DS) (2015)  
20. Nancy Harvey (Player) (2010)  

21. Stan Homenuik (Player) (2015)  
22. Wilf Homenuik (Player) (2010)  
23. Otto Huber (Player (2018) 
24. Bud Johns (DS) (2015)  
25. Danny Jutras (DS) (2011)  
26. Dana Kidd (Player) (2016) 
27. Alex Kozakavich (DS) (2010)   
28. Scott Knapp (Player) (2012) 
29. Pat Lawson (Player) (2011) 
30. Dr. Jack Leddy (DS) (2010) 
31. Phillip Lederhouse (Player) (2010) 
32. Doug Mader (Player) (2011) 
33. Jeff Makohon (Player) (2013) 
34. Jack McDonald (DS) (2013) 
35. Tom McNall (Player) (2017) 
36. Kirk McGregor (Player) (2018) 
37. Terry Meier (DS) (2011)  
38. Bill Newis (DS) (2016) 
39. Mabel Palko (Player) (2016) 
40. Arne Petersen (DS) (2017) 

41. Dr. Robert Reid (Player) (2010)  
42. Keith Rever (Player/DS) (2010) 
43. Ed Ross (Player) (2012)  
44. Tom Ross (Player) (2010)  
45. Jim Scissons (Player) (2010)  
46. Peter Semko (DS) (2010) 
47. Ron Stewart (Player) (2013) 
48. Geri Street (Player) (2010) 
49. Bill Taylor (DS) (2010)  
50. Bill Turnbull (DS) (2012) 
51. Bill Wallace (DS) (2011) 
52. Barb Wilson (Player) (2015) 
53. Tyler Wright (Player) (2019) 
 
TEAMS 
1. 1964 Amateur Men’s (2016) 
2. 1964 Junior Men’s (2017) 
3. 1985 Senior Women’s (2019) 
4. 1990 Senior Women’s (2019) 
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SPORT & CHAMPIONSHIPS COMMITTEE  

  

EXCELLENCE – HIGH PERFORMANCE DEVELOPMENT TEAM 

The High-Performance Development Team is a strategic measure under the excellence area of Golf Saskatchewan’s 
strategic plan. The overall goal of the HPD Team is to perform better on the golf course, at tournaments, be focused 
on the tasks at hand on and off the course and develop all aspects of their golf games. In 2019 we had five athletes 
take part in the HP training program. These players were introduced to a personalized fitness training program at 
Club 1621, mental training sessions, dieticians, and golf coaching and instruction from Steve Ryde and Jason 
Schneider. 

In 2019, the Easter Golf Camp took place at Crowne Isle Resort, in Comox BC.  Junior golfers from across 
Saskatchewan were invited to get a head start on their golf season and be a part of the week-long trip to the island. 
Six players attended as well as two coaches and a female chaperone. It was a wonderful week of learning, skill 
building, and competition for the juniors that took part. 

The 2020 Easter Golf Camp was scheduled to visit Golf Canada’s training center at Bear Mountain resort in Victoria 
during the Easter Break. With a lack of participant interest, the Sport Committee has decided to cancel the golf 
camp for 2020. It will be revisited in 2020/2021.  

Coaching Development 
The PGA of Canada’s coaching program is developed in partnership with Golf Canada and the Coaching Association 
of Canada (CAC). The PGA of Canada is one of 67 sports participating in the National Coaching Certification 
Program (NCCP), representing coaching and instructing excellence in Canada.  Golf Saskatchewan has made 
Coaching a strategic imperative. We have Steve Ryde and Jason Schneider (CDC) to be the coaching leaders for our 
province and work with our High-Performance Development team and our Integrated Support Team. As of 2020 
Saskatchewan has:  

▪ 2 Certified CNC Coaches, 2 in training 
▪ 2 Certified CDC  

▪ 16 Certified, 34 trained in Instructor of Beginner Golfers  
▪ 12 Certified, 34 in Instructor of Intermediate Golfers  

Community Golf Coach  
This workshop has been designed for the Community Golf Coach who is, or would like to, work with children or 
youth and is introducing the basic skills of golf. The overall goal of this workshop is to help prepare the coach to be 
competent in the skills required by a community coach. In 2019, the Community Golf Coach seminar was scheduled 
for April, at the Willows GCC but was cancelled due to lack of participants. The plans for 2020 have been put on 
hold for now due to COVID-19. Any updates for the Community Coaching stream will be communicated on our 
website and social media channels.  

National Athlete Assistance Subsidy (NAAS) 
The Sport Development Committee believes in our athletes competing and excelling at the highest levels. In 2013, 
the National Athlete Assistance Subsidy program was revamped from an application process to an earned program. 
Following our provincial championships, athletes who qualify to attend nationals, either on teams/quota spots, are 
eligible to receive funding. The amount of subsidy is determined on an annual basis, however more dollars are 
allocated towards players who make the team spots. In 2019, NAAS combined with the national championship 
funding and more than $48,000 was invested into assisting our players compete at Golf Canada championships. 
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SAGE Scholarships 
The program annually presents scholarships to assist deserving member golfers in their pursuit of high school and 
post‐secondary academic excellence. The successful recipients are selected on their basis of academic excellence as 
well as some weighting of their golf participation.  

The two organizations who pay the scholarship amounts are Golf Saskatchewan and the Saskatoon Community 
Foundation.  In 2019, more than $12,700 was awarded to 13 student athletes, provided they attended university, 
college, trade-school or post-secondary institution.  

# 
Scholarship or  
Memorial Scholarship (MS) 

Value Name Club, Community 

1. Graham DeLaet 1 $1,500 Kade Johnson Deer Park MGC, Yorkton 

2. Graham DeLaet 2 $1,500 Carey McLean Deer Valley GC, Deer Valley 

3. Golf Saskatchewan $1,000 Bradley Moser Riverside G & CC, Saskatoon 

4. Ron Young MS $1,000 Marc Sweeney Willows G & CC, Saskatoon 

5. Kozy MS $1,000 Carson Harcourt Golf Kenosee, Kipling 

6. Fletcher-Reid Scholarship $1,000 Jace Carlisle TS&M Woodlawn GC, Estevan 

7. Cooke-Kinnear Scholarship $1,000 Cory Sawchuk Cooke MGC, Prince Albert 

9.  Leddy-Heywood Scholarship $1,000 Griffin Wilson Elmwood GC, Swift Current 

10. Meredith MacPherson-Stalwick MS $1,074 Veronika Duchscherer Evergreen GC, Nipawin 

11. 
Dr. Garry Hayes MS 1. $745.35 Tyler Buffalo Golf SK. Public Player, Saskatoon 

Dr. Garry Hayes MS 2. $745.35 Joshua Guthrie Cooke MGC, Prince Albert 

12.  
Golf Saskatchewan  
High School Bursary 

$400 
Lauren Fox Golf SK. Public Player, Creighton 
Sarah Grieve Willows GCC, Saskatoon 
Autumn Neiszner Wascana G & CC, Regina  

MULTI-SPORT GAMES 

Multi-Sport Games is an area Golf Saskatchewan holds as an important Strategic Planning area.  

Saskatchewan First Nations Summer Games (Tony Cote Games) 

 
The 2019 Tony Cote Games took place July 14 – 19 in Meadow Lake.  Athletes from 13 
different First Nations between the ages 13-18 travelled from across Saskatchewan to 
compete in various sporting events such as athletics, archery, beach volleyball, 
canoeing, cross country, golf, lacrosse, soccer and softball.   

The format used for the golf was a two-person, best ball, stableford point system 
contested at the Meadow Lake Golf & Country Club. 74 golfers competed in the two-day 
competition.  

More details on the games can be found on our website or by clicking here.  

http://golfsaskatchewan.org/article/tony-cote-games-golf-competition-wraps-up
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Western Canada Summer Games 

Over 1,700 athletes, coaches, 
officials and mission staff from 
Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, 
Northwest Territories, Yukon and 
Nunavut attended the 10 days of 
competition in Swift Current. These 
athletes, ages 13 – 20 years old, are 
our country’s next generation of 
national, international, Olympic and 
Paralympic champions. 

The 2019 Western Canada Summer 
Games will leave a legacy of new 

and enhanced sport facilities and volunteer and leadership development that will benefit athletes and the broader 
southwest Saskatchewan community for years to come. 

The golf championship was played at the Chinook Golf Course. Team Saskatchewan consisted of four girls and five 
boys under the age of 17. The boys finished with a bronze medal; the girls provincial squad edged out team 
Manitoba on the final day to win silver. More details on the event can be found on our website or by  clicking here. 
 
The age classification allows athletes to compete in future multi-sport games, such as the Canada Games 2021 at 
Niagara, ON. For more information on the Western Canada Summer Games click or visit https://2019wcsg.ca/.  

North American Indigenous Games (NAIG) 
In November of 2018, the Team Saskatchewan North American Indigenous Games (NAIG) team held a planning 
session in Saskatoon at the Travelodge Hotel to prepare for the 2020 Games. Prior to the meeting, it was 
communicated some of the training costs will be funding via the Sask Sport Indigenous Sport Enhancement Project 
(ISEP) grant and some funds will come from Golf Saskatchewan. The support of Indigenous golf initiatives remains 
a high priority of Golf Saskatchewan in 2020 and beyond.   

Team Saskatchewan also showcased its new website portal, found at the following link 
(http://www.teamsasknaig.ca/). Team Saskatchewan NAIG welcomes all visitors the go to place for all news 
regarding NAIG 2020.  

The North American Indigenous Games 2020 was planning to take place in Halifax, N.S. from July 12-18, 2020. As of 
March 2020, and the COVID-19 pandemic, the games have been postponed to be held in 2021. Details will follow.  

Saskatchewan Summer Games 2020  
2020 brings the Saskatchewan summer games to the doorsteps of Lloydminster. Nearly 2,000 athletes from nine 
district teams will compete in 14 different sports over seven days, all for one incredible experience. Marty 
Wheaton, Head Professional at the Lloydminster Golf & Curling Centre is very excited to be the host golf club for 
the games.  

The Games provide an opportunity to leave a legacy in the community by 
updating and making improvements to recreation facilities, build 
community pride, and provide an opportunity for the province's top 
young athletes to compete in a top-notch multi-sport event.  

Goals of the Summer Games: 

• To develop collaborative partnerships within the community and province to enhance sport for young athletes. 
• To provide opportunity for participants to develop themselves as athletes and people. 
• To commit to a high level of participant care and comfort in all decision making. 
• To ensure the community enjoys a legacy of facilities, equipment, and volunteerism to assist in sport 

development for future generations. 
• To demonstrate leadership through fiscal responsibility, accountability, and mentorship 

http://golfsaskatchewan.org/article/sask-women-shining-in-silver-men-basking-in-bronze
https://2019wcsg.ca/
http://www.teamsasknaig.ca/
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• To create an opportunity to showcase Lloydminster and region to the province of Saskatchewan, thus 
enhancing the economic impact. 

• To celebrate a spirit of inclusion. 

For additional details on summer games, please visit https://saskgames.ca/.  

Canada Summer Games 2021 

 

Congratulations to the Niagara region for being the host of the 28th edition of the Canada Summer Games. As this is 
part of our High Performance (HP) plans, details will be communicated closer to the start of 2021. Information on 
the Jeux Du Canada Games will be communicated at https://www.canadagames.ca/ and our website.  

PARTICIPATION – GROWING THE GAME  

Future Links 

 

  

Future Links, Driven by Acura, (presented provincially by SaskTel) gives children ages 6-18 the chance to enjoy 
and learn the game of golf via affordable and accessible programs that align and support the principles of golf’s 
long-term player development guide, which has been endorsed by Sport Canada.  More than one million junior 
golfers have successfully participated in Future Links, Driven by Acura programming since its inception in 1996.  

# Programs 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Boys Girls TOTALS 

1.  Mobile Clinic/Outreach #’s 7,683 6,560 11,741 12,948 11,516 5830 5676 11,516 

2.  Active Future Link Sites 15 15 7 18 17 -- -- -- 

3.  Learn 2 Play Sites 14 12 3 8 6 196 76 272 

4.  Junior Skills Challenge 5 5 6 5 5 -- -- -- 

National Golf in Schools: 

 

 

 

This program has been developed for teachers to provide students the opportunity to develop aspects of “physical 
literacy” related to the sport of golf.  The program also increases student knowledge and appreciation for the sport 
of golf. 

In 2019, we introduced the Future Links Golf in Schools program to three elementary schools, one intermediate, 
and one high school into the program. Golf Saskatchewan’s commitment to growing the sport is evident through 
this program.  It would not be possible for Golf in Schools to have the success it has had without the school boards, 
schools, communities and member club’s support.  At the end of 2019, Golf in Schools reached 281 elementary 
schools, 16 intermediate schools and 52 high schools = Total of 349. 

https://saskgames.ca/
https://www.canadagames.ca/
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The focus in 2019 and beyond is to contact as many of the GIS sites in Saskatchewan as possible to see how the 
program is working with their school, and if they would like a PGA of Saskatchewan professional or community 
coach to help with operating golf clinics.  

How can we get a GIS kit? Some of the schools contacted our office or Golf Canada and purchased kits, others 
were chosen to receive a kit based on school budget shortfalls and some schools have been adopted by a club, golf 
professional, or local golfer.     

INCLUSIONARY PROGRAMS & SERVICES 

 

The Solo-Rider 
Sometimes people cannot play golf due to mobility issues related to age, change in life situation, health 
deterioration or an accident. The Solo-Rider is turning what used to be thought of as impossibility, into a reality. 
Athletes who have a mobility issue can now enjoy the stable, comfortable, and fun way to get back in the game. 

The specialty cart enables golfers to continue to enjoy the game of golf or take it up for the first time. Golf 
Saskatchewan, through funding from Sask Sport Inc. and the Para-Sport grant now owns two Solo-Ride power-
carts. The Solo-Riders are in Saskatoon, at the Silverwood Golf Course and in Regina, at the Royal Regina Golf Club.  

There is no cost to rent the Solo-Rider other than the cost of a green fee.   

Golf Saskatchewan is currently working with shareholders to purchase a Solo-Rider for the Prince Albert area most 
likely Cooke Municipal Golf Course. In 2019 our organization was ecstatic to allow a player to participate in a 
tournament used to raise funds for spinal cord injury programming. Please assist us in spreading the word about 
the Solo-Rider as an option for enjoying the game. Golf, a game for everyone.   

Other Groups and/or Non-Profit Organizations: 
Golf Saskatchewan also partners and/or assists with the following organizations/events: 

1. Saskatchewan Blind Sports Association 
2. Special Olympic Association of Saskatchewan (Nipawin)  
3. MS Society of Saskatchewan – Walk for a Cure  

4. Nutrien Children's Festival of Saskatchewan 
5. Spinal Cord Association of Saskatchewan  

We are open to partnering with groups to assist with mandates and assist in growing our game.   

 

 

http://golfsaskatchewan.org/article/raising-money-and-awareness-for-spinal-cord-injury-programming
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CHAMPIONSHIP SCHEDULES AND SCORES  

2020 Provincial Championship Schedule 
Date Saskatchewan Events Course/Community 
July 9 – 11  102nd Amateur Women’s  The Willows Golf & Country Club, Saskatoon 
July 14 – 16  70th Junior Women’s & 94th Junior Men’s Elmwood Golf Course, Swift Current 
July 21 – 23  109th Amateur Men’s & 34th Mid-Amateur Men’s  The Legends Golf Club, Warman 
July 28 – 30  101st Senior Men’s, 57th Senior Women’s  

3rd Men’s Mid-Amateur Masters (40+) 
Cooke Municipal Golf Course, 
Prince Albert 

Aug. 12 – 13  50th Women’s Rosebowl Katepwa Beach Golf Club, Katepwa Beach 
Aug. 22 – 23  22nd Mixed Team Candle Lake Golf Resort, Candle Lake 

2020 National Championship Schedule 
Date Canadian Events Course/Community 
July 21 – 24  107th Canadian Women’s Amateur  The Royal Montreal GC, Ile Bizard, QC 
July 28 – 31  Canadian Junior Girls  Club de golf de Lorette, Loretteville, QC 
Aug. 3 – 6  116th Men’s Amateur   Glencoe G & CC, Calgary, AB 
Aug. 10 – 13 Canadian Junior Boys  Rivershore Estate & Golf Links, Kamloops, BC 
Aug. 18 – 21  Canadian Mid-Amateur  Riverside Country Clun, Rothesay, NB 
Aug. 25 – 27  Canadian Women’s Mid-Amateur & Senior  Golf Chateua-Bromont, Bromont, QC 
Sept. 15 – 18  Canadian Men’s Senior Pheasant Glen Golf Resort, Qualicum Beach, BC 

2020 Golf Canada/Canadian Events 
Date Events Course/Community 
May 29 – 31  Western Championship  TBD, Alberta (cancelled) 
June 8 – 14  RBC Canadian Open St. George’s G & CC, Etobicoke, ON 
June 12 – 14 Prairie Championship Quarry Oaks GC, Ste. Anne, MB 
Aug. 31 – Sept. 6  CP Women’s Open Shaughnessy G & CC, Vancouver, BC 

Tournament Numbers 
Event 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 3 YR AVG 
Am Women 13 10 16 11 10 15 15 8 9 14 10 
Mid-Am Men 75 55 79 34 68 50 65 48 75 62 62 

JR Women 9 7 9 7 10 10 8 10 10 8 9 
JR Men 79 56 93 76 53 60 42 53 55 33 47 
Am Men/Mid 162 108 79 69 103 83 75 42 124 111 92 
SR Women 22 14 16 11 16 15 23 15 9 23 16 
SR Men/Mid 40+ 98 78 71 102 77 58 96 74 61 78 71 
Women’s Rosebowl  40 24 30 28 48 38 36 30 26 36 31 
Mixed Team 102 96 118 88 100 106 100 136 58 98 97 

Participants 600 448 511 426 485 435 460 416 351 463 410 

ORDER OF MERIT TOUR – WINNERS  
Golf Saskatchewan conducted four Order of Merit (OMT) tours in 2019.  The tours showcase Saskatchewan’s most 
consistent players over a summer schedule.  A player can compete in as many events as they wish however only a 
limited number of events and provincials count towards their point totals.  

Tour Winners Golf Course Community 
U19 JR Women Autumn Neiszner Wascana G & CC Regina 
U19 JR Men Jayden Dudas TS&M Woodlawn GC Estevan 
U15 JR Women Ella Kozak Deer Park MGC Yorkton 
U15 JR Men Alex Swinnerton Waskesiu GC Saskatoon 
U13 JR Men Jayden Chernoff TS&M Woodlawn Estevan 
Tour Winners Golf Course Community 
Women’s  Kathy Ziglo Saskatoon G & CC Saskatoon 
Men’s Danny Klughart Cooke MGC Prince Albert 
Senior Men’s Rick Hallberg Golf Kenosee Weyburn 
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101st Sask. Amateur Women's Championship 
Moon Lake G & CC, Saskatoon July 3 – 5, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

1 Kathy Ziglo Saskatoon 76 80 73 229 +13 
2 Carla Odnokon Saskatoon 73 79 78 230 +14 
3 Kim Brown Saskatoon 81 78 74 233 +17 
4 Brooklin Fry Shell Lake 79 79 81 239 +23 
5 Alex Schmidt Regina 82 83 77 242 +26 

6 Chloe Sies Melville 86 81 78 245 +29 

7 Ella Kozak Yorkton 80 84 87 251 +35 

T8 Carrie Lambden Saskatoon 87 89 84 260 +44 

T8 Abra Thompson Saskatoon 83 90 87 260 +44 
10 Hannah MacNeil Shaunavon 85 87 89 261 +45 

T11 Sarah Grieve Saskatoon 91 88 83 246 +46 

T11 Kayla Sawchuk Prince Albert 93 86 83 262 +46 
13 Carey McLean Deer Valley 91 91 86 268 +52 

WD Diana Laliberte Meadow Lake 103 107 N/A 210 +66 
 

Amateur Women's Team: Kim Brown, Brooklin Fry, Alex Schmidt Quota Spot: Chloe Sies 

56th Sask. Senior Women's Championship 
Royal Regina Golf Club, Aug. 6 – 8, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall 
+/- 

1 Kim Walker Regina 83 70 77 230 +17 
2 Tammy Bezaire Haque 78 83 81 242 +29 
3 Kathy Hopfner Swift Current 87 84 80 251 +38 

T4 Debra Duncan Regina 82 87 83 252 +39 
T4 Lorie Boyle Moose Jaw 83 87 82 252 +39 
6 Sue Skinner Rosetown 88 81 84 253 +40 

T7 Vicki Lamb Lloydminster 88 84 88 260 +47 

T7 Jo-Anne Schiller Lloydminster 87 89 84 260 +47 

9 Charene Kozak Regina 91 85 86 262 +49 
10 Shelley Ruecker Moose Jaw 93 85 88 266 +53 
11 Bev Bellerose Regina 86 94 90 270 +57 
12 Shari Forsythe-Hohm Esterhazy 86 92 94 272 +59 

13 Maureen Bowerman Saskatoon 94 91 91 276 +63 

14 Jacalyn MacMurchy Regina 93 92 94 279 +66 

15 Brenda Heibein Regina 98 95 89 282 +69 
16 Sherry Huyghebaert Regina 98 99 89 286 +73 
17 Audrey Perra Regina 94 94 99 287 +74 
18 Joy Dobson Emerald Park 98 99 97 294 +81 
19 Cheryl Lawrence Wynyard 101 94 103 298 +85 
20 Valerie Willick Spiritwood 97 105 98 300 +87 

T21 Angela Prystay Saskatoon 103 97 102 302 +89 
T21 Anita Simon North Battleford 101 101 100 302 +89 
23 Wendy Kennedy Saskatoon 101 105 98 304 +91 

 
Senior Women's Team: Jo-Anne Schiller, Kathy Hophner, Deb Duncan Quota Spot: Not filled 
Age Division Winners: Mae Balmos (60+) – Jo-Anne Schiller 
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69th Sask. Junior Women's Championship 
Evergreen Golf Club, Nipawin: July 9-11 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd.3 Total Overall +/- 

1 Autumn Neiszner Regina 78 76 76 230 +14 
2 Lauren Fox Creighton 85 76 78 239 +23 
3 Brooklin Fry Shell Lake 75 86 80 241 +25 

T4 Sarah Grieve Saskatoon 82 88 82 252 +36 
T4 Ella Kozak Yorkton 91 80 81 252 +36 
6 Carey McLean Deer Valley 89 83 89 261 +45 

7 Veronika Duchscherer Nipawin 90 98 98 286 +70 
8 Symone Ripley Saskatoon 112 114 109 335 +119 

 

Junior Women's Team: Autumn Neiszner, Lauren Fox, Brooklin Fry Quota Spot: Ella Kozak  
Age Division Winners: U19 – Autumn Neiszner | U15 – Brooklin Fry | U13 – No competitors 

93rd Saskatchewan Junior Men's Championship 
Evergreen Golf Club, Nipawin, July 9 – 11 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

1 Jace Carlisle Estevan 69 82 70 221 +5 

2 Steven Duchscher Saskatoon 78 75 74 227 +11 
T3 Cort Tunall Kindersley 78 76 74 228 +12 
T3 Brody Istace Kindersley 75 78 75 228 +12 
5 Griffin Wilson Swift Current 73 79 79 231 +15 
6 Chase Gedak Estevan 73 80 79 232 +16 

T7 TJ Baker Prince Albert 84 79 71 234 +18 
T7 Karter Ambrosichuk Saskatoon 79 79 76 234 +18 
T9 Carter Timmerman LeRoy 85 75 75 235 +19 
T9 Adam Husli Regina 86 77 72 235 +19 
T9 Jayden Dudas Estevan 76 76 83 235 +19 
12 Colby Friedrich Battleford 83 80 73 236 +20 
13 Cole Jenkins Prince Albert 78 75 84 237 +21 
14 Micah Tangyerd Saskatoon 79 80 80 239 +23 
15 Noah Parent Prince Albert 81 77 85 243 +27 

T16 Kyler Cote Kindersley 80 85 80 245 +29 
T16 Theoren West Wawota 82 80 83 245 +29 
T18 Will Blake Regina 83 84 79 246 +30 
T18 Will Danielson Saskatoon 77 87 82 246 +30 
T18 Davis Czuy Warman 81 77 88 246 +30 
21 Taylor Lofgren Saskatoon 85 83 81 249 +33 
22 Parker Dale Saskatoon 83 80 87 250 +34 

T23 Cody Huntley Prince Albert 89 81 81 251 +35 
T23 Jackson Wingert Saskatoon 81 88 82 251 +35 
25 Jack Hodson Riverside Estates 97 78 78 253 +37 

T26 Cole Nagy Saskatoon 80 95 79 254 +38 
T26 Hudson Malinoski Saskatoon 88 85 81 254 +38 
T26 Ajay Ranganathan Calgary 85 85 84 254 +38 
29 Logan Chernoff Estevan 84 90 87 261 +45 
30 Drayjon Sparvier Regina 82 91 89 264 +48 

T31 Ben Zultok Prince Albert 89 86 89 264 +48 
T31 Colby Stoesz Warman 95 78 91 264 +48 
33 Hudson Chernoff Estevan 94 96 87 277 +61 

 
Junior Men's Team: Jace Carlisle, Steven Duchscher, Cort Tunall Quota Spot: Brody Istace  
Age Division Winners: U19 Jace Carlisle | U15 Alex Swinnerton | U13 Jayden Chernoff  
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108th Sask. Amateur Men's Championship 
Saskatoon Golf & Country Club: July 16 – 18 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

T1 Danny Klughart* Prince Albert 74 69 66 209 -7 
T1 Jehremy Ryde Eston 70 68 71 209 -7 
3 Justin Wood Saskatoon 71 70 71 212 -4 
4 Roman Timmerman Saskatoon 71 73 68 212 -4 
5 Kyle Wiebe Madison 72 72 69 213 -3 

T6 Bradley Moser Saskatoon 74 71 69 214 -2 
T6 Shaun Dunphy Saskatoon 70 69 75 214 -2 
T6 Sean Mills Beaumont, AB 69 70 70 214 -2 
9 Scott Thompson St. Walburg 74 68 73 215 -1 

T10 Tyler Zaba Deer Valley 74 72 71 217 +1 
T10 Josh Nagy Saskatoon 70 70 77 217 +1 
T12 Ty Campbell Saskatoon 72 73 74 219 +3 
T12 Kade Johnson Yorkton 72 72 75 219 +3 
T14 Marc Sweeney Saskatoon 74 74 72 220 +4 
T14 Michael Herperger Humboldt 69 73 78 220 +4 
T16 Cory Sawchuk Prince Albert 77 73 71 221 +5 
T16 Bryan Matkowski Saskatoon 77 72 72 221 +5 
T18 Mitchell Matichuk Melville 74 74 74 222 +6 
T18 Michael Smith Saskatoon 72 73 77 222 +6 
20 Ryan McNall Regina 77 68 78 223 +7 

T21 Shawn McNall Regina 80 72 72 224 +8 
T21 Drew Kocur Regina 74 73 77 224 +8 
T21 Jared Hundza Calgary 69 77 78 224 +8 
T21 David Stewart Saskatoon 71 73 80 224 +8 
T25 Todd Turgeon Spiritwood 76 71 78 225 +9 
T25 Leighton Bearchell Moose Jaw 77 71 77 225 +9 
27 Travis Fifi Regina 80 74 72 226 +10 

T28 Carson Harcourt Kipling 76 77 74 227 +11 
T28 Rick Hallberg Weyburn 74 77 76 227 +11 
T28 Chris Schneider Saskatoon 75 76 76 227 +11 
T28 Noah Kozak Regina 75 77 77 227 +11 
T32 Chris Reid Meadow Lake 80 75 73 227 +12 
T32 Landon Emberly Clavet 79 73 76 228 +12 
T34 Kelly Bitternose Jr. Saskatoon 77 79 73 229 +13 
T34 Scott Allan Saskatoon 80 75 74 229 +13 
T34 Taylor Afseth Saskatoon 78 75 76 229 +13 
T37 Brock Ochitwa Saskatoon 76 76 76 230 +14 
T37 Torrie Coghlin Irondale, AL 76 76 78 230 +14 
T37 Keighton McNab Saskatoon 73 77 80 230 +14 
T37 Warren Proctor Saskatoon 75 78 77 230 +14 
T41 Liam Courtney Saskatoon 82 79 70 231 +15 
T41 Steven Duchscher Saskatoon 73 81 77 231 +15 
T43 Colin Coben Delisle 76 78 78 232 +16 
T43 Jax Gipman Martensville 79 74 79 232 +16 
T45 Justin Magnuson Saskatoon 80 73 79 232 +16 
T47 Zach Taylor Saskatoon 80 77 76 233 +17 
T47 Quinton Ong Saskatoon 78 78 77 233 +17 
T47 Payton Ochitwa Saskatoon 76 79 78 233 +17 
T50 John Higgins Lloydminster 76 81 77 234 +17 
T50 Darryl Czuy Warman 77 78 79 234 +17 
T50 Dean Phillips Warman 78 74 82 234 +17 
T50 Evan Corbett Saskatoon 77 74 83 234 +18 
T54 Jeremie Pasitney St. Paul, AB 82 79 74 235 +19 
T54 Joshua Guthrie Prince Albert 84 75 76 235 +19 
T56 Tian Rask Saskatoon 80 79 77 236 +20 
T56 Cole Jenkins Prince Albert 83 75 78 236 +20 
T56 Brody Istace Kindersley 82 75 79 236 +20 



  29 2019 PROVINCIAL CHAMPIONSHIPS REVIEW 

 

T56 Jim Born Lloydminster 76 73 87 236 +20 
T60 Taylor Holt Lloydminster 81 78 77 236 +20 
T60 Jason Klemenz Regina 81 75 80 236 +20 
T62 Julian Gilewicz Saskatoon 77 80 80 237 +21 
T62 Tony Turay Saskatoon 79 78 80 237 +21 
T64 Brett Sheridan Lethbridge, AB 79 79 80 238 +22 
T64 Jace Carlisle Estevan 82 76 80 238 +22 
T66 Cole Obrigewitsch Deer Valley 83 77 79 239 +23 
T66 Mike Langin Saskatoon 80 79 80 239 +23 
T66 Brett Blakely Prince Albert 80 75 84 239 +23 
T66 Tommy Danielson Saskatoon 77 77 85 239 +23 
T70 Connor Tate Saskatoon 80 81 79 240 +24 
T70 Brad Phelps Saskatoon 72 83 85 240 +24 
T72 Drew Dale LeRoy 85 80 76 241 +25 
T72 Derek Kopp Saskatoon 82 76 83 241 +25 
74 Connor Scissons Saskatoon 78 77 87 242 +26 

T75 Dillon Stubbs Wynyard 86 77 80 243 +27 
T75 Richard Heidt Saskatoon 81 80 82 243 +27 
T75 Jerrid Pasitney St. Paul, AB 82 78 83 243 +27 
T78 Ryan Gilewich Regina 83 80 81 244 +28 
T78 Tyler Frank Saskatoon 83 80 81 244 +28 
T80 Teddy Wiens Regina 82 80 83 245 +29 
T80 Jacob Kydd Regina 81 76 88 245 +29 
82 Jordan Magnuson Saskatoon 81 77 88 246 +30 

T83 Rylee Isely Saskatoon 86 81 81 248 +32 
T83 Andrew Campbell Saskatoon 85 82 81 248 +32 
T83 Zac Gurthus Saskatoon 79 80 89 248 +32 
86 Justin Pasitney St. Paul, AB 86 78 85 249 +33 

T87 David Dube Saskatoon 85 86 79 250 +34 
T87 Brad Rookes Saskatoon 83 84 83 250 +34 
T89 Les Krentz Silton 80 88 83 251 +35 
T89 Tom Whitaker Stouffville, ON 83 83 85 251 +35 
T89 Darrel Danylyshen Regina 81 82 88 251 +35 
T92 Wyatt Shew Saskatoon 82 88 82 252 +36 
T92 Karter Ambrosichuk Saskatoon 80 87 85 252 +36 
94 Duane Laskowski Osler 77 86 90 253 +37 

T95 Mike Nicholson Lloydminster 94 80 80 254 +38 
T95 Randy Gilewich Regina 84 81 89 254 +38 
T97 Noah Parent Prince Albert 85 85 85 255 +39 
T97 Colin Pasitney St. Paul, AB 88 79 88 255 +39 
99 Ryan Willick Saskatoon 85 84 88 257 +41 

T100 Keenan Strelau Martinsville 90 82 86 258 +42 
T100 Brad Byers Calgary, AB 82 84 92 258 +42 
T102 Travis Mark Lloydminster 89 88 82 259 +43 
T102 Grant Greenwood Saskatoon 92 80 87 259 +43 
104 Parker Dale Saskatoon 89 83 88 260 +44 
105 Kelly Bitternose Sr. Saskatoon 89 85 93 267 +51 
106 Shaun Hunko Prince Albert 91 79 99 239 +53 
107 Sahil Gaur Calgary, AB 87 96 93 276 +60 
108 Zack Riemer Martensville 103 90 92 285 +69 
WD Eric Nielsen Saskatoon     +11 
WD Laine Ostrowski Major     +44 
DQ Kevin Mackechnie Saskatoon     +17 

 

Amateur Men's Team: Danny Klughart, Jehremy Ryde, Justin Wood 
Quota Spots: Shaun Dunphy, Ty Campbell, Roman Timmerman, Bradley Moser, Kyle Wiebe, and Josh Nagy 
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33rd Saskatchewan Mid-Amateur Men's Championship 
Saskatoon Golf & Country Club: July 16 – 18, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

T1 Danny Klughart Prince Albert 74 69 66 209 -7 
T1 Jehremy Ryde Eston 70 68 71 209 -7 
T3 Shaun Dunphy Saskatoon 70 69 75 214 -2 
T3 Sean Mills Beaumont, AB 70 69 75 214 -2 
5 Scott Thompson St. Walburg 74 68 73 215 -1 
6 Tyler Zaba Regina 74 72 71 217 +1 
7 Michael Herperger Humboldt 69 73 78 220 +4 
8 Bryan Matkowski Saskatoon 77 72 72 221 +5 

T9 Mitchell Matichuk Melville 74 74 74 222 +6 
T9 Michael Smith Saskatoon 72 73 77 222 +6 
11 Ryan McNall Regina 77 68 78 223 +7 

T12 Shawn McNall Regina 80 72 72 224 +8 
T12 David Stewart Saskatoon 71 73 80 224 +8 
14 Todd Turgeon Spiritwood 76 71 78 225 +9 
15 Travis Fifi Regina 80 74 72 226 +10 
16 Rick Hallberg Weyburn 74 77 76 227 +11 

T17 Chris Reid Meadow Lake 80 75 73 228 +12 
T17 Landon Emberly Clavet 79 73 76 228 +12 
T19 Kelly Bitternose Jr. Saskatoon 77 79 73 229 +13 
T19 Scott Allan Saskatoon 80 75 74 229 +13 
T19 Taylor Afseth Saskatoon 78 75 76 229 +13 
T22 Warren Proctor Saskatoon 75 78 77 230 +14 
T22 Torrie Coghlin Irondale, AL 76 76 78 230 +14 
T24 Colin Coben Delisle 76 78 78 232 +16 
T24 Justin Magnuson Saskatoon 80 73 79 232 +16 
T24 Shawn Strelau Martensville 81 72 79 232 +16 
27 Zach Taylor Saskatoon 80 77 76 233 +17 

T28 John Higgins Lloydminster 76 81 77 234 +18 
T28 Darryl Czuy Warman 77 78 79 234 +18 
T28 Dean Phillips Warman 78 74 82 234 +18 
T28 Evan Corbett Saskatoon 77 74 83 234 +18 
T32 Taylor Holt Lloydminster 81 78 77 236 +20 
T32 Jason Klemenz Regina 81 75 80 236 +20 
T32 Jim Born Lloydminster 76 73 87 236 +20 
35 Tony Turay Saskatoon 79 78 80 237 +21 

T36 Mike Langin Saskatoon 80 79 80 239 +23 
T36 Brett Blakely Prince Albert 80 75 84 239 +23 
38 Brad Phelps Saskatoon 72 83 85 240 +24 

T39 Drew Dale LeRoy 85 80 76 241 +25 
T39 Derek Kopp Saskatoon 82 76 83 241 +25 
T41 Dillon Stubbs Wynyard 86 77 80 243 +27 
T41 Richard Heidt Saskatoon 81 80 82 243 +27 
T41 Jerrid Pasitney St. Paul, AB 82 78 83 243 +27 
44 Tyler Frank Saskatoon 83 80 81 244 +28 
45 Jordan Magnuson Saskatoon 81 77 88 243 +30 
46 Zac Garthus Saskatoon 79 80 89 248 +32 

T47 David Dube Saskatoon 85 86 79 250 +34 
T47 Brad Rookes Saskatoon 83 84 83 250 +34 
T49 Les Krentz Silton 80 88 83 251 +35 
T49 Tom Whitaker Stouffville, Ont. 83 83 85 251 +35 
T49 Darrel Danylyshen Regina 81 82 88 251 +35 
52 Duane Laskowski Osler 77 86 90 253 +37 

T53 Mike Nicholson Lloydminster 94 80 80 254 +38 
T53 Randy Gilewich Regina 84 81 89 254 +38 
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55 Ryan Willick Saskatoon 85 84 88 257 +41 
T56 Keenan Strelau Martensville 90 82 86 258 +42 
T56 Brad Byers Calgary, AB 82 84 92 258 +42 
T58 Travis Mark Lloydminster 89 88 82 259 +43 
T58 Grant Greenwood Saskatoon 92 80 87 259 +43 
60 Kelly Bitternose Sr. Saskatoon 89 85 93 267 +51 
61 Shaun Hunko Prince Albert 91 79 99 269 +53 

 

Mid-Amateur Men's Team: Danny Klughart, Jehremy Ryde, Shaun Dunphy 
Quota Spots: Dave Stewart, Scott Thompson, Travis Fifi, Darryl Czuy, Tyler Zaba, Shawn McNall, Mike Smith, Todd 
Turgeon, Bryan Matkowski 

100th Saskatchewan Senior Men's Championship 
Royal Regina Golf Club: Aug. 6 – 8, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

T1 Ken Rodgers* Regina 69 73 76 218 +5 

T1 Brent Wotypka Swift Current 70 76 72 218 +5 

3 Colin Coben Delisle 77 73 69 219 +6 

4 Rick Hallberg Weyburn 73 75 76 224 +11 

5 Warren Sandbeck Strathmore, AB 75 74 78 227 +14 

6 Jeffrey Gauf Edmonton, AB 80 73 75 228 +15 

T7 Chuck Hainsworth Saskatoon 77 74 78 229 +16 

T7 Rick Hillestad Saskatoon 75 75 79 229 +16 

9 James Tsakas Regina 75 77 78 230 +17 

10 Larry Wagman Regina 78 78 75 231 +18 

T11 Darrell Hawryluk Regina 81 76 75 232 +19 

T11 Mike Herchak White City 83 75 74 232 +19 

T11 Rich Michell Regina 75 76 81 232 +19 

15 Lavern Arndt Furdale 75 77 81 233 +20 

T16 David Bird Saskatoon 81 78 75 234 +21 

T16 Warren Proctor Saskatoon 77 75 82 234 +21 

T18 Jerry Maatman Winnetka, IL 75 82 78 235 +22 

T18 Paul Grimes Kenosee Lake 81 79 75 235 +22 

T18 Rick Ledingham Regina 76 78 81 235 +22 

21 Dale Eiswerth Regina 83 77 76 236 +23 

T22 Randy Shoeman Regina 84 77 76 237 +24 

T22 Grant Findlay Regina 79 81 77 237 +24 

T22 Lionel Fauchoux Saskatoon 79 75 83 237 +24 

T25 Tony Turay Saskatoon 77 84 77 238 +25 

T25 Keith Silvernagle Biggar 78 82 78 238 +25 

T27 Kenny Hoffman Regina 79 82 78 239 +26 

T27 Randy Hass Regina 79 82 78 239 +26 

T27 Brian Rittwage Saskatoon 75 85 79 239 +26 

T27 Mike Hammer Regina 80 79 80 239 +26 

T32 Doug Kozak Regina 78 83 79 240 +27 

T32 Todd Searcy Moose Jaw 83 77 80 240 +28 

T32 Stu Innes Regina 77 80 83 240 +28 

T35 Mike Ryan Regina 77 88 76 241 +28 

T35 Frank Enns Saskatoon 82 82 77 241 +28 

T35 Keith Brown Regina 89 75 77 241 +28 

T38 Nelson Scott Regina 81 83 78 242 +29 

T38 Rob Schneider Regina 77 81 84 242 +29 

T40 Grant Gudmunson Saskatoon 85 81 77 243 +30 

T40 Terry Leier Regina 84 81 78 243 +30 

T40 Jeff Wood Regina 80 80 83 243 +30 
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T40 Percy Murray Elbow 82 75 86 243 +30 

T44 Dwight Kearns Brandon, MB 82 84 79 245 +32 

T44 Harold Klempner Regina 81 82 82 245 +32 

46 Brian McCulloch Medicine Hat 82 82 82 246 +33 

47 Gerry Kreke Regina 79 86 83 248 +35 

T48 Peter van Rooyen Regina 84 81 84 249 +36 

T48 Jeff Weir Regina 81 81 87 249 +36 

T50 Barry Rud Regina 82 83 85 250 +37 

T50 Daryl Davies White City 78 87 85 250 +37 

T52 Rod Stice Regina 88 81 82 251 +38 

T52 Jody Lehmann Regina 82 88 81 251 +38 

54 Bill Lummerding Melville 81 83 88 252 +39 

T55 Patrick Murphy Estevan 84 83 86 253 +40 

T55 David Dube Regina 87 79 87 253 +40 

57 Kevin Vollet Indian Head 84 78 92 254 +41 

58 Tim Squire Saskatoon 88 84 86 258 +45 

T59 Gary Tuffs Coleville 83 87 89 259 +46 

T59 Sandor Jerkovits Regina 83 85 91 259 +46 

61 David Brown Regina 95 81 84 260 +47 

62 Robert Taylor Regina 89 83 89 261 +48 

63 Andrew Markus Vancouver, B.C. 85 83 95 263 +50 

64 Warren Williams North Battleford 89 89 88 266 +53 

65 Greg Vall Moose Jaw 89 90 88 267 +54 

66 Barry Ermel Southey 99 90 80 269 +56 

T67 Bob Wilhelms Regina 90 96 88 274 +61 

T67 Kelly Vall Regina 91 93 90 274 +61 

69 Boyd Barry Regina 93 92 90 275 +62 

70 Al Barber Duperow 95 89 95 279 +66 

71 Rick Fesciuc Regina 98 92 90 280 +67 

72 Donnie Lawrence Kenosee Lake 100 93 91 284 +71 

73 Gary Frank Regina 89 96 102 287 +74 

74 Randy Wood Regina 100 91 100 291 +78 

75 Colin Kruger Dalmeny 95 110 95 300 +87 

76 Larry Rachinsky Saskatoon 97 97 107 301 +88 

77 Richard Terry North Battleford 93 106 105 304 +91 

78 Stan Dyck Saskatoon 113 101 97 311 +98 

WD KirkMcGregor Regina 80 N/A N/A 80 +8 

 
Senior Men's Team: Ken Rodgers, Brent Wotypka, Colin Coben Quota Spots: Rick Hallberg, Rick Hillestad (Golf 
Canada SS-65+) 
Age Division Winners: *Senior Men’s Ken Rodgers *4-hole playoff | Super Senior (65-74) Dave Dunn | Legends 
(75 +) – Ken Bradley 
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2nd Saskatchewan Mid-Master Men's (40+) Championship 
Royal Regina Golf Club: Aug. 6 – 8, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Rnd. 3 Total Overall +/- 

1 Tyler Wright Regina 73 71 72 216 +3 
T2 Brad Phelps Regina 70 75 74 219 +6 
T2 Colin Coben Delisle 77 73 69 219 +6 
4 Ryan McNall Regina 72 73 75 220 +7 
5 Darryl Czuy Warman 75 73 74 222 +9 
6 Rick Hallberg Weyburn 73 75 76 224 +11 
7 Scott Allan Saskatoon 74 74 79 227 +14 
8 Mark Folk Regina 76 76 77 229 +16 
9 Paul Wagner Regina 73 81 76 230 +17 

T10 Sandy Chocan Lloydminster 76 81 75 232 +19 
T10 Shane Riddell Regina 78 74 80 232 +19 
12 Kevin Fairburn Regina 77 80 76 233 +20 
13 Rick Ledingham Regina 76 78 81 235 +22 
14 Bret Meyers Regina 82 76 78 236 +23 

T15 Ron Swan Regina 78 78 81 237 +24 
T15 Devin Mah Saskatoon 77 76 84 237 +24 
17 Doug Kreklewich Melville 78 85 77 240 +27 

T18 Nelson Scott Regina 81 83 78 242 +29 
T18 Mike Nicholson Lloydminster 75 82 85 242 +29 
20 Kerry Schofield Regina 79 84 82 245 +32 
21 Ryan Smith Regina 84 76 86 246 +33 
22 Todd Leech Regina 78 86 84 248 +35 

T23 Jonathan Hykawy Winnipeg, MB 83 85 82 250 +37 
T23 James Johnson Sturgis 78 87 85 250 +37 
25 David Dube Saskatoon 87 79 87 253 +40 
26 Jason Ottenbreit Regina 84 87 89 260 +47 
27 Ryan Rittwage Regina 89 88 91 268 +55 
28 Kevin Duchscherer Nipawin 90 93 94 277 +64 

49th Sask. Women's Rosebowl 
Lynbrook Golf Club, Moose Jaw: Aug 21 – 22, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Total Overall +/- 

1 
Sandra Williams Fort Qu’Appelle 

58 60 118 -28 
Kathi McDougall Lebret 

2 
Cheryl Lawrence Wynyard 

58 63 121 -25 
Linda Sokul Wynyard 

3 
Marie Wachno Wynyard 

60 60 122 -24 
Sheila Popowich Wynyard 

T4 
Carol Walsh Regina 

67 56 123 -23 
Patricia Pratt Lebret 

T4 
Julia King Wynyard 

63 60 123 -23 
Wanda Sweatman Wadena 

T4 
Donna Brunskill 
Sharon Blenkin 

Indian Head 
Lebret 

67 56 123 -23 

T4 
Anita Ford 
June Crofford 

Regina 
Regina 

62 61 123 -23 

8 
Debbie Dirven 
Kim Boreen 

Churchbridge 
Churchbridge 

65 59 124 -22 

T9 
Kim Stephens 
Cathy Lebioda 

Balcarres 
Regina 

66 59 125 -21 

T9 
Marlene Bennett 
Toni Norton 

Indian Head 
Fort Qu’Appelle 

63 62 125 -21 
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T9 
Nancy Croll 
Chris McGregor 

Regina 
Regina 

63 62 125 -21 

12 
Sharon Knittel 
Deb Higgins 

Moose Jaw 
Moose Jaw 

64 64 128 -18 

13 
Marie Delparte 
Marg Adair 

Regina 
Regina 

63 66 129 -17 

14 
Arlene Rask 
Heather Mumm 

Shellbrook 
Shellbrook 

69 64 133 -13 

T15 
Brenda Martin 
Pat Harlton 

Regina 
Regina 

71 64 135 -11 

T15 
Beryl Robinson 
Donna McNaughton 

Grenfell 
Fort Qu’Appelle 

69 66 135 -11 

17 
Therese Otterson 
Beverly Barkway 

Shellbrook 
Shellbrook 

70 70 140 -6 

18 
Sandra Davey 
Barb Wallace 

Moose Jaw 
Moose Jaw 

74 68 142 -4 

21st Saskatchewan Mixed Team Championship  
Golf Kenosee, Kenosee Lake: Aug 24 – 25, 2019 

Place Name  Residence Rnd. 1 Rnd. 2 Total Overall +/- 

1 Ian Larocque 
Kathy Ziglo 

Saskatoon 
Saskatoon 

69 69 138 -6 

2 Carson Harcourt 
Alexandra Demko 

Kipling 
Ontario 

72 68 140 -4 

T3 Brett Waldenberger 
Lorie Boyle 

Edmonton, AB 
Moose Jaw 

71 73 144 E 

T3 Daryl Donovan 
Meghan Betnar 

Estevan 
Estevan 

73 71 144 E 

5 Preston Hutt 
Shelley Big Eagle 

Kenosee Lake 
Manor 

73 73 146 +2 

T6 Rick Ledingham 
Lisa Richardson 

Regina 
Regina 

72 75 147 +3 

T6 Aaron Robinson 
Kate Robinson 

Saskatoon 
Saskatoon 

74 73 147 +3 

8 Paul Grimes 
Bev Grimes 

Kenosee Lake 
Kenosee Lake 

72 78 150 +6 

9 Brett Piero 
Crystal Piero 

Regina 
Regina 

76 75 151 +7 

T10 Rick Hallberg 
Shelly Babiarz 

Weyburn 
Weyburn 

77 75 152 +8 

T10 Brent Wotypka 
Kathy Hopfner 

Swift Current 
Swift Current 

75 77 152 +8 

T10 Colton McAllister 
Elanne Krainyk 

Saskatoon 
Saskatoon 

76 76 152 +8 

T13 Dwight Pearson 
Heather Pearson 

Moose Jaw 
Moose Jaw 

83 72 155 +11 

T13 Craig Guabe 
Terry Gaube 

Lumsden 
Lumsden 

81 74 155 +11 

T15 Carman Giblett 
Judy Giblett 

Regina 
Regina 

78 78 156 +12 

T15 Todd Obrigewitsch 
Kim Obrigewitsch 

Deer Valley 
Deer Valley 

79 77 156 +12 

T15 Raymond Krienke 
Kelly Krienke 

Kelvington 
Kelvington 

81 75 156 +12 

18 Tony Heath 
Heather Heath 

Estevan 
Estevan 

79 78 157 +13 

T19 Bryan Spence 
Carol Spence 

Regina 
Regina 

78 80 158 +14 

T19 Paul MacNeil 
Hannah MacNeil 

Shaunavon 
Shaunavon 

80 78 158 +14 



  35 2019 PROVINCIAL CHAMPIONSHIPS REVIEW 

 

21 Pat Coffey 
Donna Coffey 

Carlyle 
Carlyle 

80 80 160 +16 

22 Jeremy Foster 
Jacquie Foster 

Regina 
Regina 

84 77 161 +17 

T23 Garnie Currie 
Wendy Currie 

Kenosee Lake 
Kenosee Lake 

85 78 163 +19 

T23 Ken Rodgers 
Jill Rodgers 

Regina 
Regina 

85 78 163 +19 

26 Ivan Prosofsky 
Leigh Ann Nelson 

Elk Ridge Resort 
Elk Ridge Resort 

83 81 164 +20 

T27 Lindsay Wudrick 
Christine Evans 

Saskatoon 
Saskatoon 

83 82 165 +21 

T27 Parnell Pidhorny 
Cindy Lou Cull 

Estevan 
Estevan 

84 81 165 +21 

T29 Terry Brady 
Jeannie Arndt 

Kenosee Lake 
Kenosee Lake 

81 85 166 +22 

T29 Glen Olzewski 
Crystal Thiessen 

Regina 
Regina 

82 84 166 +22 

T29 Dale Pekrul 
Denise Hersikorn 

Regina 
Regina 

88 78 166 +22 

32 Greg Mario 
Karen Mario 

Regina 
Regina 

81 86 167 +23 

33 Roland Marriott 
Sandra Zimmerman 

Regina 
Regina 

82 86 168 +24 

34 Dan Cross 
Leanne Cross 

Good Spirit Acres 
Good Spirit Acres 

88 82 170 +26 

T35 Dan Snell 
Joanne Seitz 

Regina 
Regina 

88 83 171 +27 

T35 Kevin Coleridge 
Barb Coleridge 

Good Spirit Acres 
Good Spirit Acres 

87 84 171 +27 

T37 Justin Langedahl 
Jessica Langedahl 

Warman 
Warman 

91 81 172 +28 

T37 Don Cowen 
Wendy Cowen 

Pilot Butte 
Pilot Butte 

85 87 172 +28 

39 Les Krentz 
Jo Brown 

Silton 
Silton 

83 90 173 +29 

T40 David Wakefield 
Loreen Wakefield 

Weyburn 
Weyburn 

88 86 174 +30 

T40 Darcy Schrader 
Shelley Schrader 

Deer Valley 
Deer Valley 

84 90 174 +30 

42 Dennis Beauchesne 
Vickie Beauchesne 

Wawota 
Wawota 

87 88 175 +31 

43 Anthony Vendramin 
Shelley Vendramin 

Emerald Park 
Emerald Park 

87 91 178 +34 

T44 Kelly Erhardt 
Kathy Erhardt 

Buena Vista 
Buena Vista 

94 87 181 +37 

T44 Delbert Betnar 
Linda Betnar 

Regina 
Regina 

93 88 181 +37 

46 Ron Coulter 
Donna Coulter 

Estevan 
Estevan 

89 93 182 +38 

47 Jim Allen 
Liz Allen 

Moose Jaw 
Moose Jaw 

92 93 185 +41 

48 Dave Marriott 
Karen Marriott 

Regina 
Regina 

89 97 186 +42 

49 Richard Coupal 
Jo-Anne Coupal 

Emerald Park 
Emerald Park 

96 95 191 +47 
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Future Links Western Championship – Junior Boys  
Wolf Creek Club, Ponoka, Alta.: May 31 – June 2, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

T21 Jace Carlisle Estevan 76-82-73 231 

Future Links Western Championship – Junior Girls  
Wolf Creek Club, Ponoka, Alta.: May 31 – June 2, 2019  

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 
T11 Ella Kozak Yorkton 79-79-79 237 

Future Links Prairie – Junior Boys  
Deer Park Municipal Golf Course, Yorkton, Sask. June 14 – 16, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 
1 Josh Nagy Saskatoon 73-74-66 213 
6 Chase Gedak Estevan 73-78-73 224 

T17 Colby Friedrich Saskatoon 81-81-73 235 
T17 Alex Swinnerton Saskatoon 76-80-79 235 
T17 Cole Jenkins Prince Albert 75-83-77 235 
25 Steven Duchscher Saskatoon 81-76-84 241 
29 Cort Tunall Kindersley 79-81-87 247 

T30 Tommy Danielson Saskatoon 83-84-82 249 
32 Will Danielson Saskatoon 79-80-92 254 
33 Darien Herlick Weyburn 85-81-86 254 
34 Adam Husli Regina 83-82-88 253 

T35 Parker Dale Saskatoon 85-83-86 254 
T35 Carter Timmerman LeRoy 81-84-89 254 
37 Jackson Wingert Saskatoon 84-88-85 257 

T38 Ryan Chernoff Estevan 87-87-84 258 
T38 Logan Chernoff Estevan 86-85-87 258 
WD Hunter Kutcher Regina 80-84 164 

Future Links Prairie – Junior Girls  
Deer Park Municipal Golf Course, Yorkton, Sask. June 14 – 16, 2019 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 
4 Autumn Neiszner Regina 83-80-81 244 

10 Brooklin Fry Shell Lake 88-85-83 256 
11 Ella Kozak Yorkton 89-86-84 259 
12 Carey McLean Deer Valley 87-88-88 263 

T13 Lauren Fox Creighton 82-98-86 266 
15 Sarah Grieve Saskatoon 89-94-87 270 
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106th Canadian Women's Amateur Championship 
Red Deer Golf & Country Club; Red Deer, Alta.: July 23 – 26, 2019 

 

 

 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

MC Brooklin Fry Shell Lake 80-88 168 

MC Chloe Sies Melville 91-81 172 

MC Kim Brown Saskatoon 91-88 179 

MC Alex Schmidt Regina 95-97 192 

7th  Team Result  171-176 347 
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Canadian Junior Boys Championship 
Covered Bridge Golf & Country Club, Hartland, Nova Scotia: Aug. 12 - Aug. 15 

 

 
 

Place  Name Residence Rounds Total 

52nd  Steven Duchscher Saskatoon 74-73-72-76 295 

MC Chase Gedak Estevan 76-73 149 

MC Josh Nagy Saskatoon 76-74 150 

MC Jace Carlisle Estevan 84-76 150 

MC Brody Istace Kindersley 74-78 152 

MC Cort Tunall Kindersley 79-76 155 

7th  Team Result   152-145 297 
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Canadian Junior Girls Championship 
Lethbridge Country Club, Lethbridge, Alta. July 30 – Aug. 2 

 

 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

63 Brooklin Fry Shell Lake 74-78-85-84 296 

MC Ella Kozak Yorkton 83-92 175 

MC Lauren Fox Creighton 91-86 187 

MC Veronika Duchscherer Nipawin 97-104 201 

WD Autumn Neiszner Regina 82-80-84 246 

6th  Team Result  156-158 314 
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115th Canadian Men's Amateur Championship 
Glen Arbor Golf Course and The Links at Brunello, Hammond Plains, N.S.: Aug. 5 – Aug. 8 
 

 
 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

52th Roman Timmerman Saskatoon 76-74-73-73 296 

71st  Justin Wood Saskatoon 76-73-78-76 303 

MC Bradley Moser Saskatoon 83-75 158 

MC Danny Klughart Prince Albert 85-74 159 

MC Ty Campbell Saskatoon 84-76 160 

MC Jehremy Ryde Eston 87-75 162 

MC Kyle Wiebe Madison 81-82 163 

MC Josh Nagy Saskatoon 92-72 164 

WD Shaun Dunphy Saskatoon N/A N/A 

6th  Willingdon Cup Results  161-147 307 
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Canadian Men's Mid-Amateur Championship 
Summit Golf and Country Club, Richmond Hill, Ont.: Aug. 20 – Aug. 23 
 

 
 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

T17th Danny Klughart Prince Albert 72-73-79-71 295 

T32nd Dave Stewart Saskatoon 77-73-72-80 302 

T45th Jehremy Ryde Eston 79-74-77-76 306 

T55th  Scott Thompson St. Walburg 74-79-81-75 309 

69th  Shaun Dunphy Saskatoon 77-72-76-77 314 

MC Darryl Czuy Warman 79-76 155 

MC Tyler Zaba Regina 74-81 155 

MC Shawn McNall Regina 77-80 157 

MC Shaun Dunphy Saskatoon 76-82 158 

MC Mike Smith Saskatoon 81-78 159 

MC Todd Turgeon Spiritwood 79-80 159 

MC Bryan Matkowski Saskatoon 79-83 162 

4th Team Result   148-147 295 
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Canadian Women's Senior Championship 
Osoyoos Golf Club, Osoyoos, B.C.: Aug. 18 – 20 

 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

T44th Deb Duncan Regina 81-83-87 251 

T70th Jo-Anne Schiller Lloydminster 91-83-93 267 

MC Kathy Hopfner Swift Current 88-85 173 

8th  Team Results  169-164 333 
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Canadian Men's Senior Championship 
Cedar Brae Golf Club, Scarborough, Ont.: Sept. 10 – 13 

 

 
 

Place Name Residence Rounds Total 

T25th Colin Coben Delisle 74-72-80-77 303 

T32nd Rick Hallberg Weyburn 76-75-78-75 304 

T48th  Ken Rodgers Regina 81-69-76-83 309 

MC Rick Hillestad (Super Seniors) Saskatoon 79-79 158 

MC Brent Wotypka Swift Current 83-79 162 

4th Team Result   155-141 295 
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Saskatchewan Golf Association Inc.
operating as

Golf Saskatchewan
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements of Saskatchewan Golf Association Inc. operating as Golf
Saskatchewan have been prepared by the Association's management in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for profit organizations and necessarily include some amounts based on informed
judgment and management estimates.

To assist management in fulfilling its responsibilities, a system of internal controls has been established to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are accurate and reliable and that assets are
safeguarded.

The board of directors has reviewed and approved these financial statements.

These financial statements have been examined by the independent auditors, Virtus Group LLP, and their
report is presented separately.

____________________________ ____________________________
Executive Director        President
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members,
Golf Saskatchewan

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Saskatchewan Golf Association Inc. operating as
Golf Saskatchewan which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Association as at December 31, 2019 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Association in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Saskatchewan, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.  The annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association 's financial reporting process.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT continued

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern.  If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

March 27, 2020
Regina, Saskatchewan                                                                 Chartered Professional Accountants



2019 2018

Assets
 Current
          Cash 205,605$ 250,960$
          Short term investments (Note 4) 5,000 -
          Accounts receivable 18,194 30,907
          Inventory 15,286 16,540
          Prepaid expenses 610 -

244,695 298,407

 Long Term
          Tangible capital assets (Note 3) 20,554 19,169
          Investments (Note 4) 475,735 412,136

496,289 431,305

740,984$ 729,712$

Liabilities
 Current
          Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15,530$ 26,292$

239,373 214,938
254,903 241,230

Net Assets
          Invested in tangible capital assets 20,554 19,169
          Internally restricted for Golf Hall of Fame 14,110 12,677
          Unrestricted surplus 451,417 456,636

486,081 488,482

740,984$ 729,712$
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:

_________________________                         ________________________

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for 2018)

          Deferred revenue (Note 6)

- 1 -



Invested Internally
in tangible restricted for Golf Unrestricted Total Total

capital assets Hall of Fame surplus 2019 2018

Balance - beginning of year 19,169$ 12,677$ 456,636$ 488,482$ 543,208$

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
  over expenses - 1,433 (3,834) (2,401) (54,726)

Purchase of tangible capital
  assets 8,440 - (8,440) - -

Amortization of tangible
  capital assets (7,055) - 7,055 - -

Balance - end of year 20,554$ 14,110$ 451,417$ 486,081$ 488,482$
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 2 -



2019 2018

Revenue
Saskatchewan Lotteries Trust Fund, Sport Division (Schedule 1) 322,688$ 308,800$
Self Help (Schedule 2) 461,487 492,427
Tournaments and competitions 91,500 74,175
Unrealized gain (loss) on market value of investments 35,555 (17,119)
Investment income 6,661 8,201
Realized gain (loss) on sale of investments 1,101 (1,690)
Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame 8,223 9,074

927,215 873,868

Expenses
Administration (Schedule 3) 391,731 372,634
Capacity and Interaction (Schedule 4) 39,809 75,137
Participation and Interaction (Schedule 5) 110,851 103,125
Excellence (Schedule 6) 79,787 62,580
Membership Assistance Program (Schedule 7) 98,200 99,450
Charitable events 3,000 16,143
National fees 199,448 191,442
Saskatchewan Golf Hall of Fame 6,790 8,083

929,616 928,594

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (2,401)$ (54,726)$
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 3 -



2019 2018

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (2,401)$ (54,726)$
Amortization 7,055 8,308

4,654 (46,418)

Accounts receivable 12,713 (19,166)
Inventory 1,254 (4,816)
Prepaid expenses (610) -
Accounts payable (10,762) 10,805
Deferred revenue 24,435 2,627

31,684 (56,968)

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities:
Purchase of tangible capital assets (8,440) -
Net (purchase) redemption of investments (21,447) 14,647
Decrease (increase) in market value of investments (47,152) (2,965)

(77,039) 11,682

Change in cash during the year (45,355) (45,286)

Cash - beginning of year 250,960 296,246

Cash - end of year 205,605$ 250,960$
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

Changes in working capital accounts

- 4 -



GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 5 -

1. Description of operations

Saskatchewan Golf Association Inc. (“Golf Saskatchewan” or the “Association”) was incorporated under
the Non-profit Corporations Act, 1995 of Saskatchewan.  The Association promotes and coordinates
amateur golf in the province of Saskatchewan.   The Association is exempt from income taxes under
Section 149(1)(l) of the Income Tax Act.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations. The financial statements required management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the period.  These estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary,
they are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known.  The financial statements
reflect the following policies:

Financial instruments – recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recorded on the statement of financial position when the
Association becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  All financial
instruments are required to be recognized at fair value upon initial recognition, except for certain
related party transactions.  All other financial assets, except for investments, and financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost adjusted by transaction costs, which are amortized
over the expected life of the instrument. Investments are measured at fair value.

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged at arm's length between
willing, unrelated parties in an open market.  Changes in fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value are recognized in excess of revenues over expenses.

When there is an indication of impairment and such impairment is determined to have occurred, the
carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost is reduced to the greater of the
discounted cash flows expected or the proceeds that could be realized from sale of the financial
asset.  Such impairments can be subsequently reversed if the value subsequently improves.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost is determined based on the
specific identification method.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided on
a declining balance basis over the estimated useful life of the assets at the following annual rates:

Computers 40%
Equipment 30%
Furniture & fixtures 30%



GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 6 -

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Funds

The Golf Hall of Fame fund is an internally restricted fund established to hold funds raised in support
of a Saskatchewan golf hall of fame.

Revenue recognition

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which related expenses are incurred.
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount can
be reasonably estimated and collections are assured.  Revenues received from the Saskatchewan
Lotteries Trust Fund for Sport, Culture and Recreation are recorded as revenue in year to which the
funding relates. Investment revenue is recognized as it is earned.

Donations in kind

Donations of material and services are recorded at fair market value when received if the amount
can be reasonably estimated and would otherwise have been purchased.

Contributed services

The work of Golf Saskatchewan is dependent on the services of many volunteers at amateur events
as well as for the governance council and various committees.  Since these services are not
normally purchased and because of the difficulty in determining their fair value, donated services are
not recorded in the statement of operations.

3. Tangible capital assets

2018
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost Amortization value value

Computer 41,394$ 41,162$ 232$ 385$
Office equipment 17,771 17,583 188 268
Equipment 67,203 47,069 20,134 18,516

126,368$ 105,814$ 20,554$ 19,169$

2019
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4. Investments
2019 2018

Redeemable GIC, maturing November 25, 2020, 1.25% interest 5,000$ -$

  Total current investments 5,000$ -$

RBC A+ Unified Managed Account 466,417$ 403,348$
Sport Legacy Fund investment (Note 5) 4,799 4,565
Cash surrender value of life insurance policy 4,519 4,223

  Total long term investments 475,735$ 412,136$

The RBC A+ Unified Managed Account is a structure which provides access to multiple investment
managers within one account. The asset allocation of the account at year end was 48% equities and
48% fixed income (2018 – 45% equities and 55% fixed income), with an emphasis on high quality
securities, income generation, downside protection and capital preservation.

At December 31, 2019, the asset allocation in the account was $14,082 in cash, $226,212 in fixed
income and $226,123 in equities.  At December 31, 2018, the asset allocation in the account was
$15,929 in cash, $220,479 in fixed income and $166,940 in equities.

5. Sport Legacy Fund

The cash surrender value of the life insurance policy and investment in the Sport Legacy Fund consists
of donations based on various programs and contributions by Sask Sport. These amounts are recorded
as deferred revenue until amounts have been received. To qualify for an additional contribution by Sask
Sport Inc., the Association is required to leave the original amount and any additional donations in the
Legacy Fund for a minimum of five years.

6. Deferred revenue

During 2019, the Association received $224,200 (2018 – $206,150) from the Saskatchewan Lotteries
Trust Fund for annual expenses which will occur in the following fiscal year. Deferred revenue includes
the funds invested with the Sport Legacy Fund of $9,318 (2018 – $8,788) and unspent Indigenous Sport
Enhancement grant funds of $5,856 (2018 - $0).

7. Economic dependence

Golf Saskatchewan currently receives revenue in grants from Saskatchewan Lotteries Trust Fund for
Sport, Culture and Recreation.  As a result, the Association is dependent upon the continuance of these
grants to maintain operations at their current level.

8. Financial instruments

The Association recognized financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and investments. The fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities and investments approximate their carrying value given the short-term nature
of the amounts.



GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 8 -

9. Financial risk management

The significant financial risks to which the Association is exposed are:

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation.  The Association is exposed to credit risk on the accounts
receivable from its customers, however, does not have a significant exposure to any individual customer
or member.  The Association incurred $2,147 (2018 - $3,845) in bad debt expense in the current year.
The Association’s customers are mainly members of the Association.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.  The Association’s exposure to liquidity risk is dependent on the receipt of funds from
its operations and other related sources. Funds from these sources are primarily used to finance working
capital and capital expenditure requirements and are considered adequate to meet the Association’s
financial obligations.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices.  The Associations investments in publically traded securities expose the
Association to market price risk as such investments are subject to price changes in the open market.
The Association does not use any derivative financial instruments to alter the effects of this risk.

10. Contributed materials

During the year the Association received donated golf products estimated to be valued at $20,000.

11. Subsequent event

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic for the COVID-19 virus.
The Association is following health advisories and mandatory requirements from local, provincial and
national health and government organizations.  The financial impact on the Association, and its ability to
continue operations once the pandemic ends, is unknown.

The Association has investment holdings in equities and worldwide financial markets have significantly
declined since the pandemic was declared.  As of March 27, 2020, the Association’s RBC A+ Unified
Managed Account (Note 4) had a current fair market value of $428,330, a decline of $38,087 or 8.17%
since year end.  This decline has not been recognized in the financial statements as management
believes that the value of the investment portfolio will recover when the pandemic is over.  Financial
markets continue to fluctuate daily based on current events.  It is unknown whether the Association will
experience a financial loss on its investments, and if so, how much.



2019 2018

Schedule 1 - Saskatchewan Lotteries Trust Fund, Sport Division
Annual funding 215,900$ 209,600$
Membership Assistance Program (Schedule 7) 98,200 99,200
Hosting - Regional 1,944 -
Indigenous Sport Enhancement Grant 2,644 -
Jeux Canada Games Foundation 4,000 -

322,688$ 308,800$

Schedule 2 - Self Help
     Internal

Membership fees 416,113$ 394,088$
Camp and clinic fees 15,040 3,000

     External
Fundraising, sponsorship and donation(s) 5,785 68,609
Golf Canada grant(s) 14,271 16,411
Merchandise sales 662 2,683
Other grants 9,616 7,636

461,487$ 492,427$

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
Schedule of Revenue

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)
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2019 2018
Schedule 3 - Administration

Audit, accounting and legal 16,170$ 16,681$
Bank charges and interest 7,819 7,289
Cost of goods sold 146 2,380
Amortization 7,055 8,308
Insurance 2,241 1,947
Office operations:

Bad debt 2,147 3,845
Computer and website 2,891 2,841
Phone 8,310 7,813
Postage 2,101 3,274
Printing and photocopying 855 1,197
Rent 15,247 16,599
Supplies 1,119 1,368

Professional development 5,426 2,917
Staff salaries and benefits 320,204 296,175

391,731$ 372,634$

Schedule 4 - Capacity and Interaction
Awards and recognition 8,526$ 7,581$
Marketing and promotions 14,233 49,886
Meetings 15,661 14,777
Volunteer clothing 1,389 2,893

39,809$ 75,137$

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
Schedule of Expenses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)
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2019 2018

Schedule 5 - Participation and Interaction
Athlete development

Competition 83,721$ 76,043$
Introductory programs 6,131 5,826

Coaches development
Introductory clinics and coach professional development 900 -

Officials development
Course rating, handicap, rules 20,099 21,256

110,851$ 103,125$

Schedule 6 - Excellence
Athlete development

Athlete assistance and national championships 49,653$ 48,763$
Multi sport games 5,137 417
Scholarships 6,400 7,800
Training 6,766 847

Coaching and coach development
Professional development 2,851 3,797

Official development 8,980 956

79,787$ 62,580$

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
Schedule of Expenses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)

- 11 -



2019 2018

Schedule 7 - Membership Assistance Payments

Aspen Links Country Club 263$ -$
Bengough Regional Park Golf Club 200 250
Birch Hills Golf Club 805 925
Candle Lake Golf Resort 869 619
Canwood Pines Golf Club 250 250
Carlton Trail Regional Park 250 500
Carlyle Town & Country Golf Club 625 500
Carnduff Golf Club 1,357 1,661
Chinook Golf Course 1,606 995
Chitek Lake Golf Course 250 -
Cooke Municipal Golf Course 2,122 2,334
Coronach Golf Club 250 -
Dakota Dunes Golf Links - 600
Deer Park Municipal Golf Course 2,741 2,443
Deer Ridge Golf Club 200 -
Deer Valley Golf & Estates 2,044 1,555
Eagle Point Resort 250 250
Echo Ridge Golf Course 525 500
Elk Ridge Resort 920 945
Elmwood Golf & Country Club 3,476 3,079
Eston Riverside Golf Club - 375
Evergreen Golf Club 1,920 1,505
Fairview Fairways Golf Club 200 250
Flowing Springs Golf Greens 500 500
Foam Lake Golf & Country Club 250 250
Golf Kenosee 1,558 1,363

246 -
Goulet Players Club 1,205 -
Green Acres Golf & Country Club 730 1,237
Greenbryre Country Club 480 450
Greenhills Golf Resort 475 -
Harbor Golf Club & Resort 1,312 1,395
Hidden Hills of Shellbrook Golf Course 1,153 1,396
Hillcrest Golf Club 1,616 2,442
Holiday Park Golf Course  and Men's Club 200 484
Holiday Park Ladies Golf Club 1,083 1,814
Humboldt Golf Club 475 459
Indian Head Golf & Country Club 1,287 1,271
Joanne Goulet Players Club - 1,588
Kachur's Golf Club 350 -
Katepwa Beach Golf Club 720 1,062
Kelvington Golf Club 195 -
Kindersley Golf Course 250 -
Lloydminster Golf & Curling Centre 2,238 2,894
Long Creek Golf & Country Club 400 250
Long Creek Ladies Golf Club 190 785
Lynbrook Golf & Country Club 2,844 2,769
Mainprize Regional Park Golf Club 790 1,085
Manitou Beach Golf Club - 250

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
Schedule of Expenses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)
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2019 2018
Schedule 7 - Membership Assistance Payments (continued)

Maple Creek Golf Club 1,349$ 1,485$
McNab Regional Park Golf Club 250 250
Melfort Golf & Country Club 1,210 1,200
Melville Golf & Country Club 250 500
Memorial Lake Regional Park Club - 250
Mervin & District Golf Club 1,278 1,179
Moonlake Golf & Country Club 1,998 1,438
Moose Creek Golf Club 500 -
Murray Men's Golf Club 305 -
Murray Women's Golf Club 205 673
North Battleford Golf & Country Club 1,969 2,359
Outlook Riverview Golf Club 720 760
Pasqua Golf Club 250 250
Pipestone Hills Golf Club 2,165 2,296
Ponteix Golf Club - 942
Redvers & District Golf and CC 250 500
Regina Beach Golf Course 250 500
Regina Beach Ladies and Men's Golf Club 796 800
Riverside Country Club 4,750 2,000
Rock Creek Golf & Country Club 405 716
Rolling Pines Golf & Country Resort 625 630
Rosetown Golf & Country Club 1,492 1,335
Royal Regina Golf Club 5,188 6,251
Sandy Beach Regional Park & Golf Course 250 250
Saskatoon Golf & Country Club 4,292 4,000
Shields Golf Course - 275
Silver Lake Golf Club 250 250
Silverwood Golf Club 350 250
Spiritwood Golf Club 590 735
St. Brieux Regional Park Golf Course 650 727
The Creek Golf Club 250 250
The Legends Golf Club 2,040 2,627
Thomson Lake Regional Park Golf Course 435 459
Tisdale Riverside Golf Club 250 250
Tor Hill Ladies Golf Club 890 1,329
Tor Hill Men's Golf Club 746 470
TS&M Woodlawn Golf Club 3,011 3,916
Unity Golf Club 500 -
Valley Regional Park Golf Club 590 -
Valleyview Delisle Golf & Country Club 291 936
Wakaw Lake Golf Club 505 568
Wascana Country Club 4,570 2,000
Waskesiu Golf Course 1,219 1,279
Weyburn Golf Club 1,616 1,200
Wildwood Golf Course 3,055 3,964
Willows Golf & Country Club 3,075 3,120
Wynyard Golf Club 650 751
York Lake Golf & Country Club 250 250

98,200$ 99,450$

GOLF SASKATCHEWAN
Schedule of Expenses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2018)
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